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Godrej Consumer Products Ltd.
Regd. Office : Pirojshanagar,
Eastern Express Highway,

vikhroli (E), Mumbai 400 079. india
Tel.: +91-22-2518 8010/8020/8030
Fax: +91-22-2518 8040/8065/8069
Website ; www.godrejep.com

CIN : L24246MH2000PLC129806

The financial details and capital evolution of Godrej Consumer Products Limited (“GCPL® or “the
Transferee Company”) for the previous 3 years as per the audited standalone statement of Accounts and for
quarter ending June 30, 2016, is as follows:

Name of the Company: Godrej Consumer Products Limited

{Rs. in Crores)
Details Quarter ending FYz2015-16 FY2014-15 FY2013-14
June 30, 2016
Equity Paid up Capital 34.05 34.05 34.04 34.04
(net of ESOP)
Reserves and surplus 3799.86 3789.20 3349.01 2090.32
Carry forward losses - - : -- -
Net Worth 2833.91 3823.25 3383.05 3024.36
Miscellaneous -- -- -- -
Expenditure
Secured Loans - - 0.34 0.88
Unsecured Loans - 2.75 - -
Fixed Assets 1296.25 1242.08 1239.02 1253.08
Income from Operations 1063.97 4811.57 4429.80 4079.84
Total Income 1076.81 4854.38 4487.31 4119.84
Total Expenditure 879.31 3913.17 3668.72 3406.85
Profit before Tax 197.51 941,21 827.19 712.99
Profit after Tax 151.59 739.72 654.45 564.84
Cash profit 165.30 787.10 696.12 600.36
(PAT + depreciation)
EPS (in Rs.) (diluted) 4.45 21.72 19,22 16.59
Book value 112.59 112.28 99.38 88.85
(net worth/no. of shares)

For Godrej Consumer Products Limited

VS san
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

T ® g "
rwy

52




Annexvre G 2.

Godrej Consumer Products Lid.
Regd. Office : Godre] One,

4th Flaor, Pirojshanagar,

Eastern Express Highway,

Vikhroll {E), Mumbai 400 079, indla.
Tel.: +81-22-2518 B010/8020/8030
Fax: +91-22-2518 8040/8065/5069
Webusite : www.godrejep.com

July 29,
uly 29, 2016 CIN : L24246MH2000PLC120806

BSE Ltd Scrip Code : 532424
Corporate Relations Department

1st Floor, Rotunda Bidg., P.J. Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 023.

The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd
Exchange Plaza, 4" Floor,
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Mumbai 400 050

Dear Sir,
Sub: Outcome of Board Meeting-luly 29, 2016

At the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held today, the Board has:

1. Taken on record the unaudited financial results for the quarter ended June 30, 2016, The said
results are enclosed herewith. The said results have been subjected to limited review by the
statutory auditors. The limited review report which has been taken on record is enclosed
herewith.

2, Declared a first interim dividend @ Re. 1/- per share (100% on the shares of the face value of
Re.1/- each) for the financial year 2016-17.

As intimated earlier the Record Date for ascertaining the names of the shareholders who will be
entitled to receive the said dividend Is Monday, August 8, 2016;

The said interim dividend, if declared, will be paid on August 22, 2016.

The Exchanges are also informed that the Board meeting commenced at 11.30 a.m. and the results
were approved by 12.00 noon,

This is in compliance with the Listing Regulations and other provisions as applicable.
For Godrej Consumer Products Ltd.

-

Vv Srinlvan
Chief Financlal Officer & Company Secretary

CC: 1) The Vice-President, National Securities Depository Ltd., Trade World, 4* Floor
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013
2) The Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. P J Towers, 28" Floor, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001



KALYANIWALLA
& MISTRY iread

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS LIMITED

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of Unaudited Standalone Financial Results of
GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS LIMITED (the Company) for the quarter ended June 30,
2016, prepared by the Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI Circular
No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016, (initialled by us for identification). The Ind AS
compliant figures of the corresponding quarter of the previouns year have not been subjected to a
limited review or an aundit and are based on the previously published financial results as adjusted
for differences arising on the transition to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). This statement
is the responsibility of the Company’s Management and has been approved by the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on July 29, 2016. Our responsibility is to issue a report on these
financial statements based on our review.

2. We conducted our review in accordance with the Stendard on Review Engagement (SRE) 2410,
‘Review of Interitn Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and
perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. A review of interim financial standalone statements is limited primarily to
inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data. It is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the generslly accepted
auditing standards, the objective of which is expression of opinion regarding the financial
statements taken as a whole. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express
an audit opinion.

3. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the accompanying statement of Unaudited Standalone Financial Results prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and other recognised accounting practices and
policies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI
Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5, 2016, including the mamnmer in which it is to be
disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 10460TW

ot

Roshni R. Marfatia
PARTNER
M. No.: 106548
Mumbai: Dated: July 29, 2016.
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KALYANIWALLA
& MISTRY «(res

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS LIMITED

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of Unaudited Consolidated Financial
Results of GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS LIMITED (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Godrej Group”) for the quarter ended on June
30, 2016, prepared by the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with
SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 05, 2016, (initialled by us for
identification). The Ind AS compliant figures of the corresponding quarter of the previous
yearhavenotbeensubjectedtoalinﬁtedrevieworanauditmdarebasedonthe
previously published financial results as adjusted for differences arising on the transition
to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). This statement is the responsibility of the
Company’s Management and has been approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on July 29, 2016. Our responsibility is to issuc a report on these financial statements
based on our review.

2. 'We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagement (SRE)
2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of
the Ertity, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of India. This standard requires
that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review of interim financial
consolidated statements is limited primarily to inquities of company personnel and
analytical procedures applied to financial data. It is substantially less in scope then an
audit conducted in accordance with the generally accepted aunditing standards, the
objective of which is expression of opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a
whole. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion.

3. We did not review the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, whose financial
statements reflect the Group’s share of total assets of Rs. 7,891.12 crore as at June 30,
2016, and the Group’s share of total revenue of Rs. 1,090.50 crore, for the three months
ended on that date as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements have been reviewed by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us
andomopinion,insofarasitrelatestotheamountsincludedinrespectofsuch
subsidiaries is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

KALPATARU HERITAGE, 127 MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, MUMBA! 400 po1
TEL.: {91) (22) 6158 7200 FAX: (91) ([22) 2267 31964

TEL.: (91) (22) 6158 6200 FAX: (91) (22) 6158 6275

ARMY & NAVYY BUILDING, 148 MAHATMA GANDHI ROAD, MUMBAI 400 oo 55



KALYANIWALLA
& MISTRY

4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that the accompanying statement of Unandited Consolidated Financial Results
prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and other recognised
accounting practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be
disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016
dated July 5, 2016, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains
any material misstatement.

For RALYANIWALLA & MISTRY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Reg. No.: 104607W

fpriardett
Roshni R, Mar%

PARTNER
M. No.: 106548
Mumbai: Dated: July 29, 2016.
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Annexura |

Reporting of Segment wise Revenue, Results, Assets and tiabllities along with the quarterly results

(X Crore)
Quarter endad
30-Jun-16 3C-Jun-15
Particulars {Unaudited) {Unpudited)
1. Segment Ravenue
a} Indla 1,063.97 1,063.39
b} Indonesia 376.20 349.90
¢) Africa (Including Strength of Nature) 442,98 303.35
d) Others 266.36 296.87
less:  hmersegment ellminations [26.74) (25.57)
Net Sales/income from Operations 2,122.77 1,987.94
2, Segment results (Profit){+)/ Loss (-) before tax, interest & exceptional items
a) Indla 204.58 192.42
b} Indonesia 77.67 63.39
c) Africa (Including Strength of Nature) 66.21 40.18
d) Others 18.88 25.55
Less: _|ntersegment eliminations {5.00) (8.03}
Total 362.34 313.51
Less: 1) interest {32.58) (32.88)
2) Exceptional ltems {9.4%8) (99.83)
Total Profit Before Tax 320.27 180.80
3. Segment Assets
a) India 2,742.02 2,818.31
b} Indoneska 2,543.88 2,345.44
¢} Africa (Including Strength of Nature) 6,072.78 3,339.39
d) Others 1,244.52 1,169.06
Less: Intersegment Eliminations (216.96) (204.76)
12,391.25 9.467.44
4. Segment Liabllitles
a) Indla 1,393.63 1,379.67
b) Indonesla 333.52 357.15
c} Africa {including Strength of Nature) 447,34 12170
d) Others 386.29 314.51
Less: Intersegment Eliminatlons [174.76)| (54.3;ﬂ
2,386.02 | 2,118.72 |
Annexure-ll
Reconcillation of Standalone and Consolldated Statement of Profit and Loss as previously reported under IGAAP and Ind-AS
{X Crore}
Particulars Quarter ended 30 June 2015
Standalone Consolidated
{Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Profit After Tax as per Indian GAAP 135.78 199,23
Acdjustments:
Change in fair value of call/ put options for Darling & Chile businesses* {75.00)
Dhvidand pald 1o Non-controlling shareholders® [6.63)
Arquisttion related costs * {3.35)
Falr value galns on financial Instruments 203 218
Redemption Premium on Debentures |s.20)J {6.20}
Notionaf Income from Corporate Guarantees in favour of subsidiaries 874 -
Share of profits of Non controlling shareholders - 12,58
Other ind AS adjustments (i) 123
Deferred tax on Ind AS Adjustments {5.55)| (7.33)]
Total adjustments {0.39) {s2.51)|
Total Comprehensive Incame as per Ind AS 135.39 116.72 |

* Part of exceptional kems

for
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GODRE] CONSUMER PRODUCTS LIMITED
Regd. Office: Godre] One, 4" Floor, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli, Mumbal 400 079 www.godrejcp.com
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Notes

1 The above results which are published in accordance with Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements), 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting
held on July 29, 2016. The consolidated financial results are In actordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (ind-AS)
as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of the Companles {indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2016. The current quarter results
have been subjected to a limited review by the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

2 The statement doas not Include Ind-AS compliant results for the preceding quarter and previous year ended 31 March
2016 as the same are not mandatory as per SEBI's circular dated 5 July 2016.

3 The Ind-AS compllant coresponding figures of the corresponding quarter of the previous year have not been subjected to
2 limited review or an audit, However, the Management has exercised necessary due diligence to ensure that such financial
results provide a true and fair view.

4 Exceptional ltems include an amount of € 9,49 crore for the quarter ended June 30, 2016, comprise of restructuring costs
incurred by a subsidiary of the Company.

5 Durlng the quarter, the Company has netted off, under Other Expenses, the rental income In respect of corporate office
premises amounting to T 2.28 crore with rental expenses amounting to ¥ 2.28 crore for the quarter In respect of similar
premises in the same building.

6 During the quarter, the Company has granted 58376 new stock grants to eligible employees under the Employee Stock
Grant Scheme (ESGS).

7 The Board of Directors of the Company as Its meeting held on July 29, 2016 approved a scheme of amalgamation of Godrej
Consumer Products US Holding LUimited and Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited, subsidiaries of the Company,
with Godrej Consumer Products Limited. The amalgamation, subject to necessary regulatory approvals, Is proposed to be
effective from October 1, 2016.

8 The Board has declared a first interim dividend for the year 2016-17 at the rate of ®1 per share {100% on the face value of .
® 1 each). The record date for the same has been fixed as August 8, 2016 and the dividend shall be paid on August 22,
2016.

9 Segment information as per Ind-AS 108, ‘Operating Segments’ is disclosed in Annexure-|

10 The recondiliation of net profit for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 reported as per Indian GAAP to total comprehensive
income as per Ind-AS (s disclosed In Annexure-ll

11 In view of acquisitions and changes in the Company’s shareholding in some of the subsidiaries, the consolidated results
for the current period are not strictly comparable with those of the previcus period.

12 Previous period figures have been regrouped and reclassifled wherever necessary.

Place: Mumbal By Order of the Board

Date: July 29, 2016 For Godre] Consumer Products_lJmlted

2

I B. Godre
Chairman

‘Certified to be True
_For Gdrej Consumer Products Lid,

‘V. Srinivasan
.Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

51



ANNEXVRE - G&

The financial details of Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited (‘GCPUSHL’ or ‘the Transferor
Company 1') for the period ended August 31, 2016 as per the audited statement of Accounts, is as follows:

Name of the Company: Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

(Amount in USD)
Details For the period FY2015-16 | FY2014-15 | FY2013-14
ended August 31,
2016
Stated Capital 77,511,000
Preference Share Capital -
Reserves and surplus (6,655)
Carry forward losses -
Net Worth 77,504,345
Miscellaneous Expenditure -
Secured Loans --
Unsecured Loans - Not Applicable
Fixed Assets — as GCPUSHL is incorporated on
Income from Operations - March 29, 2016
Total Income -
Total Expenditure 6,655
Profit before Tax (6,655)
Profit after Tax (6,655)
Cash profit (6,655)
[EPS (in Rs.) (0.00009)
Book value 0.99901

For Godrej Consumer Produncts US Holding Limited

%

Ashraf Ramtoola

Director

Oct 25, 2016

Certified to be True
For Godrej Consumer Products Ltd.

Y}

*
risivasan

Cfﬂef Financial Officer & Company Secretary

63



ANNEXURE G 7

‘Certified to be True

For GZrej Consumer Products Ltd.

V. Srinivasan
.Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Godrej Consumer Products US Holding
Limited

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 August 2016

6l



Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited
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Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have the pleasure to submit their commentary together with the first audited financial
statements of Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited, (the “Company”), for the period ended
31 August 2016.

INCORPORATION

The Company was incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius on 29 March 2016 under the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001 as a private company limited by shares.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the period are as shown in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the period under review.

DIRECTORS

The present membership of the Board is set out on page 1.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period, which present
fairly the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company. In
preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

AUDITORS

The. auditors, Morison (Mauritius), Chartered Certified Accountants, have indicated their willingness to
continue in office and a resolution concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual Meeting.
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REPORT FROM THE REGISTERED AGENT

We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and bellef, Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited
{the “Company”), has filed with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required-of the Company
under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 In terms of section 166(d) for the period ended 31 August 2016,

-
duu_ )

for CItvi CORPORATE SERVICES LTD

Registered Agent

Date: £ SEP 2016

CIM CORPORATE SERVICES LTD
33, Edith Cavell Sireel, Port Louis, 11324, Mauritius
Tel: 4230 212 9800 Fax: 4230 212 9833 Email: info@cimglobalbusiness.com

BRN C09004928
wwhw.cimglobalbusiness.com ﬂ\



P 4
” Chartered Certified Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

This report is made solely to the shareholder of Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited,
{the “Company”) as a body in accordance with Section 205 of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s shareholder those matters we are
required to state to the shareholder in an auditar’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's shareholder as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the statement of financial position
at 31 August 2016, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to designh audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circurstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

5™ Floar City Centre Bldg, 31 Cnr La'Corderie & Leoville.L'Homme Streets, Port Louis,

fepublic of Mauritius.

T: {230) 242 1111/242 3339/242 3340

F: {230) 242 3061 Morison Ksi
E: info@morismu.com Independent member
W: www.maorismu.com



”; Morison (Mauritius)
Chartered Certified Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

Lt T L

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 6 to 18 give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 August 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001

we have no relationship with, or any interests in, the Company other than in our capacity as auditors;
we have obtained al! the information and explanations we have required; and

in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears from our
examination of those records.

N "N D

Morison {Mauritius) Nazeer Bhugalogy/FCCA (Licensed by FRC)
Chartered Certified Accountants Signing Partn

Date: 9’! S‘.PP QO\L

Port Louis, Mauritius

h

5" Floor City Centre Bldg, 31 Cnr La Corderie & Leoville L'Homme Streets, Port Louis,

Republic of Mauritius.

T: (230} 242 1111/242 3339/242 3340

F: (230) 242 3061 Morison KSi
£ info@morismu.com Independent member

W www.morismu.com



Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2016
Notes 2016
usb
ASSETS
Nen current asset
Investment in subsidiary 5 77,500,000
Current assets
Other receivables 6 1,975
Cash and cash equivalents 3,970
5,945
Total assets 77,505,945
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
" Capital and reserves
Stated capita! 7 77,511,000
Accumulated losses {6,655)
77,504,345
Current llability
Other payables 8 1,600
Total equity and Iliabilities 77,505,945

Approved by the Board of Directors on 7.3 SFP 2018 and signed on its behalf by

b6 Rs—e

Director Directer—"

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements,
Independent-Auditors’ Report on pages 4 and 5.



Godref Consumer Products US Holding Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)

TO 31 AUGUST 2016
Note 2016
usD
INCOME
EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 2,921
FSC fees 39
Disbursements 300
Bank charges 10
Set up fees 1,785
Audit fees 1,600
6,655
Loss before taxation (6,655}
Taxation 9
Loss for the period (6,655)
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for the period {6,655)
The notes on pages 10 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements. A

Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 4 and 5.



Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

Stated Accumulated
capital losses Total
usD usoD UsD
At 29 March 2016 -
Issue of shares 77,511,000 - 77,511,000
Total comprehensive loss for the period - {6,655) {6,655}
At 31 August 2016 77,511,000 {6,655) 77,504,345

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form an integfal-part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 4and 5,



Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before taxation

Adfustments for:

Increase in other receivables
Increase in other payables

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flow from investing activitles
Purchase of subsidiary
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash at bank

The notes on pages 10 to 18 form an integral part of these financial statements:.

Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 4 and 5.

7

2016
uUsD

(6,655)

(1,975)
1,600

(7,030}

{(77,500,000)

(77,500,000)

77,511,000

77,511,000

3,970

3,970

3,970
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Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 {DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

1. COMPANY PROFILE

Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited {the "Company") is a private company, limited by shares
and incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius on 29 March 2016 under the Mauritius Companies Act
2001. On the same date, it has been granted a Category 2, Global Business Licence by the Financial
Services Commission.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. Its registered office is at C/o CIM
CORPORATE SERVICES LTD, Les Cascades Building, Edith Cavell Street, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS")
In the current period, the Company has applied all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and the IFRS Interpretations Committee
of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on
29 March 2016.

New and revised IFRSs and IASs effective during the year

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Amendments
resulting from September 2014 Annual Improvements to IFRSs (Annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the application of the
consolidation exceptions {Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

[FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Amendments regarding the application of
the consolidation exception (Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - Original issue {Applies to an entity’s first annual IFRS

financial statements for a period beginning on or after 1 Jonuary 201 6)

International Accounting Standards (1ASs)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments resulting from the disclosure
initiative (Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016)
1AS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2011) - Amendments reinstating the

—_—

egquity method as an accounting option for investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in an entity's separate financial statements {Annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016}
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Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

2.

(a)

(b)

{c)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS")
{Cont'd)

New and revised IFRSs and [ASs in issue but not yet effective

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Finalised version, incorporating requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment, general hedge accounting and
derecognition (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Amendments to defer the effective date
to 1 January 2018 {Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

The directors anticipate that the application of these Standards and interpretations on the above
effective dates in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting date. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention. Financial assets and
liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortised cost or historical cost.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates {the “functional currency”}. The financial statements are
presented in USD, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation-at period end exchange rates of meonetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

A
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Godref Consumer Products US Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 {DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

{h)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

- Interest income — as it accrues unless collectibility is in doubt.
- Dividend income - when the sharehaolder’s right to receive payment is established.

Expense recognition
Expenses are accounted for in profit or loss on an accrual basis.
Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities {including structured entities) over which the Company has control. The
Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Company ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control Is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss.

Consolidated financial statements

The Company holds 99.87% of the issued share capital of Godrej SON Holding Inc, a company
incorporated in the United States of America. The results and financial position of the Company's
subsidiary investment are not consolidated and therefore group financial statements in accordance with
IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ have not been prepared.

Group financial statements, are prepared at the level of the holding company, Godrej Consumer
Products Ltd, a company incorporated in India.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset Is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a
revaluation decrease.
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Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

3.

(h)

1)

(k)

)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cont’d)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation
other than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value,

Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

e the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

e itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the cobligation; and

e a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by
another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated
as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the
provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Stated capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Set up costs

Set up costs are expensed when incurred.,
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Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

3.

{m)

{n)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the statement of financiat position when the Company
has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company’s polities in respect
of the main financial instruments are as foillows:

o  Other payables

Other payables are stated at their nominal values.

®  Equity instruments
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Related party transactions

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if
they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Company or exercise significant influence over
the Company in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Company is
subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individual or other
entities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the maost effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:-

Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of transactions
and exchange differences arising thereon are dependent on the functional currency selected. As

described in Note 3(c), the directors have considered those factors described therein and have
determined that the functional currency of the Company is the United States Dollar {“USD").



Godref Consumer Products US Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

15

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY 2016
usD
At start -
Additions during the period 77,500,000
At close 77,500,000
Detail of investment is as follows:
Country of Type of No of shares % Holding Amount
Name of Company  incorporation shares 2016 2016 2016
usb
Godrej SON United States
Holding Inc of America Ordinary 77,500,000 99.87% 77,500,000
The directors are of the opinion that the above unquoted investment is valued at cost.
6. OTHER RECEIVABLES 2016
UsD
Prepayments 1,975
7. STATED CAPITAL 2016
usD
77,511,000 ordinary shares of USP 1 each 77,511,000
8. OTHER PAYABLES 2016
usD
Accruals 1,600
9. TAXATION

A Global Business Licence Category 2 company is not a tax resident in Mauritius and therefore it is not

liable to tax.
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Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

10.

(a)

(b}

(c)
(i)

(ii)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Values of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The Company’s financial assets and

liabilities include cash and cash equivalents and other payables. The carrying amounts of these assets
and liabilities approximate their fair values.

Currency profile

The currency profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are summarised as follows:

Financial Financial
assets liabilities
2016 2016
usoD yso
United States Dollars 3,970 1,600

Prepayments amounting to USD 1,975 have been excluded from financial assets.
Financial risk

Currency risk

No foreign currency sensitivity analysis has been provided as the Company has no financial assets and
liabilities dominated in currencies other than its functional currency.

Credit risk

Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to credit risk consist principally of cash and cash
equivalents. The extent of the Company’s exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial assets
approximates their carrying values as recorded in the Company’s statement of financial position.

The Company take on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be upable to pay
amounts in full when due. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit

exposure.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2016
uso

Cash and cash equivalents 3,970
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Godref Consumer Products US Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

10.
(c)
(iif)

{iv)

11,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fail
due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial liabilities.
The table below illustrates the aged analysis of the Company's financial liabilities.
31 August 2016
Less than Over 1
1 year year Total

Liability usD usb usb
Other payables 1,600 - 1,600
Total liability 1,600 - 1,600
Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for sharehoider and benefits for other

stakeholders.

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising of issued capital and accumulated losses.

The Company does not have any third party debt due for the period ended 31 August 2016, hence does
not have any capital risk.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

For the period ended 31 August 2016, the Company had transaction and balance with the related entities
as follows:

Debit
halance at
Name of Nature of Volume of 31 August
entity Relationship transactions transactions 2016
usD usD

Godrej SON Holding Inc  Subsidiary Investment 77,500,000 77,500,000
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Godrej Consumer Products US Holding Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 29 MARCH 2016 (DATE OF INCORPORATION)
TO 31 AUGUST 2016

12,

13,

14,

15.

16.

17.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 August 2016, the Company has no material litigation claims outstanding, pending or threatened
against, which could have a material effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no material capital commitments as at 31 August 2016.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no material events after the reporting period, which would require disclosure or
adjustment to the financial statements at 31 August 2016.

HOLDING COMPANY AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors consider Godrej Consumer Products Holding (Mauritius) Limited, a company incorporated
in the Republic of Mauritius as the holding company and Godrej Consumer Products Limited, a company
incorporated in India, as the ultimate holding company.

COMPARATIVES

There are no comparatives as these are the first set of financial statements prepared by the Company
since its incorporation on 29 March 2016.

REPORTING CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars {“USD”).



ANNEXVRE - (8

The financial details of Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited (“GCPML" or "the Transferor

Company 2”) for the period ending September 30, 2016 and the previous 3 years as per the audited
standalone statement of Accounts, is as follows:

Name of the Company: Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited

{Amount in USD)
Details For the period | FY 2015-16 | FY 2014-15 | FY 2013-14
ended
September 30,
2016

Stated Capital 45,235,006 | 45,235,006 | 45,235,006 | 37,385,006
Preference Share Capital - - - 500,000
Reserves and surplus 56,440,889 | 60,904,910 | 60,904,910 | 60,904,910
Carry forward losses (3,687,689) | (3,685,218) | (3,938,640) | (3,873,844)
Net Worth 97,988,206 | 102,454,608 | 102,201,276 04,916,072
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans - - - -
Unsecured Loans - | 6,000,000 - -
Fixed Assets - - - -
Income from Operations 123,240 297,231 - 322,607
Total Income 123,240 334,847 8 322,910
Total Expenditure 125,711 81,425 64,804 68.095
Profit before Tax (2,471) 253,422 (64,796) 254,815
Profit after Tax (2,471) 253,422 {64,796) 254,815
Cash profit (2,471) 253,422 (64,796) 254,815
EPS (in Rs.) (0.00005) 0.0056 _ (0.0014) 0.0068
Book value 2.17 2.26 2.26 2.54

For Godrej Consumer Products Mauritiug Limited

Ashraf Ramtoola E;rg ﬂ?e(il égngt?mg;l;’?oducts Ligi.

Director : .

Oct 25, 2016 '\, Srinig;

Chief Financial Officer & Company gacretary
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Certified to be True
‘For Gegrej Consumer Products Ltd.

V. Stinfvasan

Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Godrej Consumer Products
Mauritius Limited

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 September 2016
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have the pleasure to submit their commentary together with the audited financial statements of

Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited, the “Company”, for the six months period ended

30 September 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the year are as shown in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year under review (2016: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The present membership of the Board is set out on page 1.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which present

fairly the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company. In

preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.
AUDITORS

The auditors, Morison (Mauritius), Chartered Certified Accountants, have indicated their willingness to
continue in office and a resolution concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual Meeting of

the shareholder.
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CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY
We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited has

filed with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required of the Company under the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001 in terms of section 166(d} for the six months ended 30 September 2016.

. S

for CIVI CORPORATE SERVICES LTD
Corporate Secretary

Date: 21 0CT 20%

ClM CORPORATE SERVICES LTD
33, Edith Cavell Sireei, Port Lovjs, 11324, Mauritius
Tel: 4230 212 9800/ Fax: + 230212 9833 Email: info@cimglobq[business_com

BRN C0%004928
www.cimglobalbusinesscom




”.. Morison (Mauritius) \

r
Chartered Certified Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

This report is made solely to the shareholder of Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited, the “Company”,
as a body in accordance with Section 205 of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s shareholder those matters we are required to state to
the shareholder in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholder as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Report on the Financlal Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Company which comprise the statement of financial position
at 30 September 2016, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as modified by the exemption from consolidation
in the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 for companies holding a Category 1 Global Business Licence and in
compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining interal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policles; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

5" Floor City Centre Bidg, 31 Cny La Corderie & Leoville L'Homme Streets, Pori 1buis;

Republic of Mauritius.

T: (230) 242 1211/242 3339/242 3340

F: (230} 242 3061 Morison Ksi
E: info@morismu.com Independent member
W www.morismu.com



‘ ”f Morison (Mauritius)

‘Chartered Certified Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 6 to 27 give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 30 September 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then
ended in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards, as modified by the exemption from
consolidation in the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 for companies holding a Category 1 Global Business
Licence.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001
we have no relationship with, or any interests in, the Company other than in our capacity as auditors;
we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and

e in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from
our examination of those records.

Now N D

Morison (Mauritius) Nazeer Bhugaloo, FCCA (Licensed by FRC)
Chartered Certified Accountants Signing Partrer

pate: <2 1 0CT 2016

Port Louis, Mauritius

5" Floor City Centre Bldg, 31 Cnr La Corderie & 1#oville-L'Homme Streets, Port Louis,

Republic of Mauritius.

T: (230) 242 1111/242 3339/242 3340

F: (230) 242 3061 Morison KSi
E: info@morismu.com Independent member
W wawnw. morismu.com



GODREI CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

ASSETS

Non current assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment In associates

Current assets

Other receivables

Loan receivable

_ Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves
Stated capital

Share premium
Other reserve

Fair value reserve
Accumuiated losses

Current liabilities
Borrowing
Other payables

Total equity and liabilities

Approved by the Board of Directors on

21 0CT 201

30 September 31 March
Notes 2016 2016
uso usp
5 : 102,202,417
6 97,645,960 .
97,645,960 102,202,417
7 111,801 39,286
8 . 6,000,000
236,170 . 257,680
347,971 6,296,966
97,993,931 108,499,383
9 45,235,006 45,235,006
10 56,338,834 56,338,334
11 102,055 -
- 4,566,076
(3,687,689) (3,685,218}
97,988,206 102,454,698
12 : 6,000,000
13 5,725 44,685
5,725 6,044,685
97,993,931 108,499,383

Cludin

Director {] ¢

and signed on its behalf by

G

Director

The notes on pages 10 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Indepéndent-Auditors’ repart on pages 4 and 5.



GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

INCOME
Dividend income
Other income

EXPENSES

Administrative expenses

Legal and professionai fees
Audit fees

Interest paid

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Taxation

{Loss)/profit for the period/year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period/year

Period from
01 April 2016 to Year ended
30 September 31 March
Notes 2016 2016
UsD UsD
15 - 297,231
123,240 37,616
123,240 334,847
12,776 20,353
2,224 22,987
2,000 4,300
108,711 33,785
125,711 81,425
(2,471) 253,422
14 -
(2,471) 253,422
(2,471) 253,422

The notes on pages 10 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ report onpages 4 and 5.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before taxation
Adjustment for:

Dividend income

Interest income

Increase in other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in other payables
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment

Loan repaid/(granted)

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash generated from/{used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan (repaid}/received

Other reserve

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net {decreased)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period/year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period/year

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash at bank

The notes on pages 10 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ report on pages4.and 5.

0

Perlod from
01 April 2016 to Year ended
30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usD usD

(2,471) 253,422

- (297,231)

(123,240) (37.616)

{72,515) (38,613)
(38,960} 34,635

(237,186) (85,403)

{9,619) (56,425)

6,000,000 (6,000,000)
123,240 37,616
- 297,231

6,113,621 {5,721,578)
(6,000,000) 6,000,000
102,055 -
(5,897,945) 6,000,000
{21,510} 193,019
257,680 64,661
236,170 257,680
236,170 257,680
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GODRE] CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

1.

COMPANY PROFILE

Godre] Consumer Products Mauritius Limited {the “Company”} s a private company, limited by shares
and incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius on 15 February 2008 under the Mauritius Companies Act
2001. The Company holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence under Section 72(6) of the Financial
Services Act 2007 and is regulated by the Financial Services Commission.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding and its registered office is at C/o CIM
CORPORATE SERVICES LTD, Les Cascades Building, Edith Cavell Street, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS")

In the current period, the Company has applied all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and the IFRS Interpretations Committee
of the 1ASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on
01 April 2016,

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Amendments
resulting from September 2014 Annual Improvements to IFRSs {Annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016}

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the application of the
consolidation exceptions {Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016}

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Amendments regarding the application of
the consolidation exception {Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016}

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - Original issue (Applies to an entity's first annual IFRS

financial statements for a period beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments resulting from the disclosure
initiative {Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016}
I1AS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2011) - Amendments reinstating the

equity method as an accounting option for investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates in an entity's separate financial statements {Annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

1AS 28 Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures - Amendments regarding the
application of the consolidation exception (Annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016)

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments regarding the

clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation {Annual perlods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016}
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

2,

(a)

(b)

(c)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS")
{Cont’d)

New and revised (“IFRSs”) and (“IASs”) In issue but not yet effective

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Finalised version, incorporating requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment, general hedge accounting and
derecognition (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 201 8)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Amendments to defer the effective date
to 1 January 2018 (Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

The directors anticipate that the application of these Standards and Interpretations on the above
effective dates in future periods will have no material impact on the financlal statements of the
Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) including International Accounting Standards (“1AS").

Basls of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as modified by the exemption from consolidation in the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001 (“IFRS as modified by Mauritius Companies Act 2001") for companies
holding a Category 1 Global Business Licence.

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are set out below.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in United States Dollar {“USD"), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and.from the translation at period end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in-foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.



12

GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

3

{d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cont'd)

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific criteria must also be met for
revenue recognition:

Interest income — as it accrues unless collectibility is in doubt.

- Dividend income — when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Expense recognition
All expenses are accounted for profit or loss on an accruals basis.
Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities} over which the Company has control. The
Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has the rights to, variabie returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control Is transferred to the Company.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

When the Company ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss.

Consolidated financial statements

As at 31 March 2016, the Company owned 57.61% of the issued share capital of Godre] Consumer
Products Dutch Cooperatief U.A, a company incorporated in Netherlands and 99.99 % of issued share
capital of Godre] Nigeria Limited, a company incorporated in Nigeria and 100% of issued share capital of
Godrej Africa Holding Limited, a company incorporated in Mauritius.

For the period ended 30 September 2016, the Company owns 30.10% of the issued share capital of
Godej Mauritius Africa Holding Limited, accompany incorporated in Mauritius and 23.60% of the issued
share Capital of Godrej Consumer Product Holding Mauritius Limited, both companies incorporated in

Mauritius,

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption provided by the Mauritius Companies Act 2001
allowing a wholly owned or virtually owned parent company holding a Category 1 Global Business
Licence not to present consolidated financial statements which contain financiai information of the
Company as an individual company and do not contain consolidated financlal Information as the parent

of the group.

Group financlal statements, are prepared at the level of the holding company, Godrej Consumer
Products Ltd, a company incorporated in India.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

3.

{h)

(i)

i)

(k)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Investment in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant Influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recognized at cost, and the carrylng amount is increased or decreased to recognize the
investor’s share of profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income is recfassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. if any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset.

if the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost iess any accumulated depreciation or amortisation Is
recognised immediately in profit or loss,

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods,

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost Jess accumulated depreciation or amortisation
other than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Stated capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an Insignificant risk of change in value.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

3.

)

(m)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Provisions and contingencles
Provisions are recognised when:

* the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

s it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and

s areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by
another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be recelved If the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated
as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the
provision,
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Financial instruments
Financial assets and llabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Company
has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company’s policies in respect
of the main financial instruments are as follows:

e  Other payables

Other payables are stated at their nominal values.

e  Other recelvables

Other receivables are stated at their nominal values.

® loans

Loans are stated at their nominal values.

e  Equity instruments

Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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GODRE] CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

3.

(n)

(o)

(p)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cont'd)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the perlod in which they are incurred.
Current and deferred income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years but it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

reporting date.
Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and are
accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences and deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Related party transactions

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if
they have the ability, directly or Indirectly, to control the Company or exercise significant influence over
the Company In making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Company is
subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individual or other

entities.
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GODRE] CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Critical occounting judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the most effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:-

Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company s critical since recording of transactions
and exchange differences arising thereon are dependent on the functional currency selected. As
described in Note 3{c), the directors have considered those factors described therein and have
determined that the functional currency of the Company Is the United States Dollars (“USD").

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usp ushD

At start 102,202,417 102,135,462

Addition - 56,425

Transfer of Investment to assoclates (102,202,417)

Capitalised costs during the period/year _ 10,530
At close - 102,202,417
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

5.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
The directors are of the opinion that the above unquoted investments are fairly valued at cost.
fi}  No capital infusion has been made as at 30 September 2016.

(i) {a) Investment in Godrej Consumer Products Dutch Cooperatief U.A and Godrej East IP Holdings
Ltd have been transferred to Godrej Consumer Product Holding Mauritius Limited.

(b) Investment in Godrej Africa Holding Limited has been transferred to Godrej Mauritius Africa

Holding Limited.
6. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE 30 September 31 March
2016 2016
UsbD uUsD
At start - -
Transfer of investment from subsidiary 97,645,960 -
Atend 97,645,960 -
The details of investment are as follows:
Amount
Country of Type of % 30 September 31 March
Name of Company Incorporation shares Holding 2016 2016
usD usD
Godrej Mauritius
Africa Holding Limited Mauritius Ordinary 30.10 39,490,552
Godrej Consumer
Product Holding
Mauritius Limited. Mauritius Ordinary 23.60 58,155,408
97,645,960

The directors do not consider accounting for investment in associate under equity method as they
believe that this will not add value to users of the financial statements had the equity accounting
method been used.



GODRE] CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

7.  OTHER RECEIVABLES

Interest receivable
Prepayments

Amount due from subsidiaries
Advance payment

8. LOAN RECEIVABLE

Loan to Godref Africa Holdings

At start
{Repayment)/Addition
At end

19

30 September 31 March
2016 2016
UsD usb
- 37,616
111,801 670
- 1,000
111,301 39,286
30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usD usbD
6,000,000 -
{6,000,000) 6,000,000
- 6,000,000

The above loan borne a 6 months Libor rate + 1.45% rate per annum, unsecured in nature and will be

repayable on demand.

9.  STATED CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid

45,235,006 ordinary shares of USD 1 each

10. SHARE PREMIUM

At start and at close

11, OTHER RESERVE

At start and at close

30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usD usD

45,235,006 45,235,006

30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usD usp

56,338,834 56,338,834

30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usb UsD

102,055

The above amount is guarantee commission.computed on corporate guarantee provided by the ultimate
holding company to HSBC Mauritius for banking facilities granted to the company.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TOQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

12,

13.

14,

BORROWING 30 September 31 March
2016 2016
Usp usD

Loan from HSBC

At start 6,000,000 -

(Repayment)/Addition (6,000,000) 6,000,000

At end - 6,000,000

The above loan borne a 6 months Libor rate + 1.2% rate per annum, unsecured in nature and will be
repayable on demand.

GCPL India has submitted a letter of comfort for USD-15,000,000 as requested by the bank.

OTHER PAYABLES 30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usD UsD

Interest payable - 33,785

Accruals 5,725 10,900

5,725 44,685

TAXATION

The taxation of income and capital gains of the Company and of the shareholders is subject to the fiscal
law and practice of the Republic of Mauritius, the countries in which the Company invests and the
jurisdiction in which shareholders are resident or otherwise subject to tax. At 30 September 2016, the
Company held investment in Mauritius and Netherlands.

Mauritius

Under the current laws and regulations, the Company is liable to tax in Mauritius at 15% on its taxable
income. It is however entitled to a tax credit equivalent to the higher of the actual foreign taxes paid or
80% of the Mauritius tax on its foreign source income, thus reducing its maximum effective tax rate to

3%.
Netherlands

The Company also conducts its investment activities in Netherlands but not as a tax resident of
Mauritius as there is no (“DTAA”) between Netherlands and Mauritius,

Nigeria

TheCompaniy.also conducts its investment activities in Nigeria but not as a tax resident of Mauritius as
there is no (“DTAA”) between Nigeria and Mauritius.



GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

14. TAXATION {Cont'd)

21

No tax liability arises in Mauritius for the periods ended 30 September 2016 and 31 March 2016, For the
year under review, the Company had accumulated tax losses of USD 986,249 (31 March 2016 -

USD 1,894,976).

Tax Reconciliation

(Loss) /profit before taxation
Add disallowed expense
Less exempt income

Less tax loss brought forward
Tax loss freezed
Tax loss carried forward

Avallability of tax loss for use against future taxable profit

Year of assessment

Tax losses carried forward for next 5 years
Tax losses carried forward for next 4 years
Tax losses carried forward for next 3 years
Tax losses carried forward for next 2 years
Tax losses carried forward for next 1 year

15. DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividend income from Godrej Africa Holding Ltd

The above income has been fully recelved.

30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usD UsD
(2,471) 253,422
- 72,279
- (297,232)
(2,471) 28,469
{1,854,976) (2,847,362)
911,198 923,917
{986,249) (1,894,976)
30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usD UsD
(2,471) -
g (64,796)
(64,796) -
- (918,982)
(918,982) (911,198}
(986,249) (1,894,976)
30 September 31 March
2016 2016
usb UsD
297,231
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GODRE] CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

186.

{a)

(b}

(c)
(i)

(ii)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Values of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The Company’s financial assets and
liabilities include available-for-sale investment, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loan

receivable, loan payable and other payables. The carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities
approximate their fair vaiues.

Currency profile

The currency profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are summarised as foilows:

30 September 2016 31 March2016
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets liabiiities
2016 2016 2015 2015
usb ushD usp usp
United States Dollars 236,170 5,725 6,296,296 6,044,685

Prepayments amounting to USD 111,801 (31 March 2016: USD 670) have been excluded from financial
assets.

Financial risk
Currency risk

No foreign currency sensitivity analysis has been provided as the Company's financial assets and
liabilities are dominated in USD, the functional currency.

Credit risk

Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to credit risk consist principally of other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The extent of the Company's exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial assets approximates their carrying values as recorded in the company's
statement of financial position.

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit

exposure,
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk {Cont’d)

{li}  Credit risk (Cont’d)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
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30 September 31 March
2016 2016
uspD usb
Cash and cash equivalents 236,170 257,680
QOther receivables - 38,616
Loan receivable - 6,000,000
236,170 6,296,296

The financial assets are neither past due nor impaired at reporting date.
The excess monies of the Company are banked with reputable banks.

(i)  Uquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet is liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,

without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring

forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial liabilities.

The table below illustrates the aged analysis of the Company's financial liabilities.

30 September 2016
Less than Over1l
1 year Year Total
Liabilities usD usb usb
Other payables 5,725 5,725
Total liabilities 5,725 - 5,725
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16.
(¢}
(i)

(iv)

v)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financlal risk (Cont’d)

Liguidity risk {Cont’d}
31 March 2016
Less than Over1l

1 year Year Total
Liabillties UsSD UsD usD
Borrowings 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Other payables 44,685 - 44,685
Total liabilities 6,044,685 - 6,044,685
Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest bearing financial instrument consist of loan from its local bank (HSBC) amounting
to USD 6,000,000. The rate of interest is 6month Libor rate + 1,45% per annum. As a result, the Company
is not subject to significant amount of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest

rates.

Capitol risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend payments to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Company consists of borrowings and equity attributable to its equity holder,
comprising issued capital and retained earnings.
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk (Cont’d)

{v) Capital risk management (Cont'd)

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio at the period end was:

30 September
2016

25

31 March
2016

usp

usb

Debt {i)

Less cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity (ii)

Net debt to equity ratio

(i) Debt is defined as loan payable.

6,000,000
(257,680)

5,742,320

102,454,698

0.06:1

{ii)  Equity includes all capital and retained earnings of the Company.

17. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

For the six months ended 30 September 2016, the Company had transactions and balances with the
related entities as follows:

Debit/(credit)  Debit/(credit)
balance at balance at
Nature of Nature of Volume of 30 September 31 March
Name of entitles relationships transactions transaction 2016 2016
uUsb usD UsD
Godrej Africa Loan receivable
Holding Ltd Subsidiary (i) 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Godrej Africa Interest
Holding Ltd Subsidiary receivable 37,616 - 37,616
Godrej Nigeria Ltd  Subsidiary Investment 10,520,000 - 10,520,000
Godrej Consumer
Products Dutch
Cooperatief U.A Subsldiary Investment 58,114,835 58,114,835
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18.

15.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {Cont'd)
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Debit/{credlt)  Debit/{credit)
balance at balance at
Nature of Nature of Volume of 30 September 31 March
Name of entities relationships transactions transactions 2016 2016
usD usD uspb
Godre] Africa
Holding Ltd Subsidiary Investment 33,536,628 33,536,628
Godrej Easy IP
Holding Subsidiary Investment 30,955 - 30,955
Godrej Easy IP Settlement of
Holding Subsidiary expenses - 1,000
Godrej Africa Dividend
Holding Ltd Subsidiary income (1) - - (297,232}
Godrej Africa Loan interest
Holding Ltd Subsidiary income - - (37,616)
Godrej Consumer
Product Maurltius
Holdings Ltd Subsidiary Investment 58,155,408 58,155,408 -
Godre] Mauritius
Africa Holdings Ltd  Subsidiary Investment 39,490,552 35,490,552 -
(i) The above loan borne a 6 months Libor rate + 1.45% rate per annum, unsecured In nature and

will be repayable on demand.

HOLDING AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors regard Godrej Consumer Products Ltd, a company incorporated in India as the company

holding and ultimate holding company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 September 2016, the Company has no material litigation claims outstanding, pending or
threatened against, which could have a material effect on the Company's financlal position or results of

operations;
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20,

21,

22.

23.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no commitments at 30 September 2016.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There have been no material events after the reporting date, which would require disclosure or
adjustment to the financial statements at 30 September 2016.

However, following a resolution dated 29 September 2016, the board has agreed to convert the

Company from a Category 1 Global Business Licence to Category 2 Global Business Licence Company. At
30 September 2016, the process was still on-going.

COMPARATIVES

The current period figures pertain 6 months period from 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2016 whilst the
comparative figures are for the year ended to 31 March 2016. Therefore, the comparative figures for
the statements of financial position, statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and related notes are not comparable.

REPORTING CURRENCY

The financlal statements are presented in United States Dollars ("USD").
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have the pleasure to submit their commentary together with the audited financial
statements of Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited, the “Company”, for the year ended
31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the year are as shown in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year under review (2015: Nil).
DIRECTORS

The present membership of the Board is set out on page 1.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which
-present fairly the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that they bave complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Morison (Mauritius), Chartered Certified Accountants, have indicated their willingness
to continue in office and a resolution concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual
Meeting of the shareholder.
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CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY FUND | CORPORATE | HOUCIARY SERVICES

We certify !hat, to the {aest of our knowledge and belief, Godrej Consumer Produets Mauritius Limited
hag ﬁlt?d with the !{eglstrar of Companies ali such returns as are required of the Company under the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001 In lerms of section 166(d) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

for CIM C%ORATE SERVICESLTD

Corporate Secretary
Date: 135 JUN 20%

CIM CORPORAYE SERVICES LTD
33, Edlith Cavell Street, Port Louls, 11324, Mavrillus
Talt +230 212 9900 Fenc: 230 212 9833 Emoiit Infogcimglobolbusiness.com

BRN C09004928
www,clmglobolbusiness.com




An Independent member of Morison KSi

4&-,- Morison (Mauritius)

Chartered Certified Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

This report is made solely to the shareholder of Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited, the
“Company”, as a body in accordance with Section 205 of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s shareholder those matters we
are required to state to the shareholder in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s shareholder as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Company which comprise the statement of financial
position at 31 March 2016, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as modified by the exemption from
consolidation in the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 for companies holding a Category 1 Global
Business Licence and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand or
error.

5thFlgor, City Centre Eldg, No 31, Cnr La Corderle &
Leoville L'Homme Streets, Port Louis,
Republic of Mauritius
T (230) 242 1111/ 242 3339/ 242 3340
Hg{, {230) 242 3061
EZ info@morisniticom
WWW.merismu. con




#)- Morison (Mauritius)

Chartered Certified Accountants

An independent member of Morison KSi

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

Auditors’ Responsibility (Cont’d)

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 6 to 27 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 March 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as modified by
the exemption from consolidation in the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 for companies holding a
Category 1 Global Business Licence and comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Mauritius Companies Act 2001

» we have no relationship with, or any interests in, the Company other than in our capacity as
auditors;
we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and
in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears
from our examination of those records.

Ao 0N D)

Morison (Mauritius) Nazeer Bhugdloo, FCCA (Licensed by FRC)
Chartered Certified Accountants Signing Partner

Date: \1} Ju.e youl

Port Louis, Mauritius

5th Figor, Clty Centre Bldg, No 31, Cnr La Corderie &
Leoville L'Homme Streets, Port Louis,
Republic of Maurltius
T (230) 242 1111/ 242 3339/ 242/3340
&2, (230) 242 3061
B info@morismu.com
yww,motismu.com




GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2016
Notes 2016 2015
UsD 0sD
ASSETS
Non current assets
Investment in subsidiaries 5 102,202,417 102;135,462
Available-for-sale investment 6 - 1
102,202,417 102,135,463
Current assets
Other receivables 7 30,286 11,202
Loan recejvable 8 6,000,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents 257,680 64,661
6,296,966 75,863
Total assets 108,499,383 102,211,326 -
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Stated capital 9 45,235,006 45,235,006
Share premium 10 56,338,834 36,338,834
Fair value reserve 4,566,076 4,566,076
Accumulated osses (3,685,218) (3,938,640)
102,454,698 102,201,276
Current liability
Borrowing 1 6,000,000 -
Other payables 12 44,685 10,050
6,044,685 10,030
Total equity and labilitles 108,499,383 102,211,326
13 JUN 2018

Approved by the Board of Directors on

G

and signed on its behalf by

RSoe

Director— Directof

The notes on pages 10 to 27 form an integtal part 0T these financial statements,
Independent Auditors’ roport on pages 4 and 5,




GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Notes 2016 2015
USD UsD
INCOME
Dividend income 14 297,231 -
Other income 37,616 8
334,847 8
EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 20,353 24,035
Legal and professional fees 22,987 35,261
Audit fees 4,300 3,900
Interest paid 33,785 1,608
81,425 64,304
Profit/(loss) before taxation 253,422 (64,796)
Taxation 13 - -
Profit/(loss) for the year 253,422 (64,796)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 253,422 (64,796)

The notes on pages.10.to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditors” report on pages 4 and 5.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Adjustment for:

Dividend income

Interest income

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in other payables
Net cash used in operating activitles

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment

Loan granted

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares
Redemption of preference shares

Loan received

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash at bank

2016 2015
USD USD
253,422 (64,796)
(297,231) -
(37,616) :
(38,613) 3,772
34,635 (12,150)
(85,403) (73,174)
(56425)  (7,220,000)
(6,000,000) -
37,616 -
297,231 -
(5,721,578) __ (7,220,000)
- 7,850,000
- (500,000)
6,000,000 -
6,000,000 7,350,000
193,019 56,826
64,661 7,835
257,680 64,661
257,680 64,661

The notes on pages 10°to-27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditors” report on pages 4 and 5.

7
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

L.

COMPANY PROFILE

Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited (the “Company”) is a private company, limited by
shares and incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius on 15 February 2008 under the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001. The Company holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence under Section
72(6) of the Financial Services Act 2007 and is regulated by the Financial Services Commission,

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding and its registered office is at
C/lo CIM CORPORATE SERVICES LTD, Les Cascades Building, Edith Cavell Street,
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”)

In the current year, the Company has applied all of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and the IFRS
Interpretations Committee of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for
accounting periods beginning on 01 April 2015,

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
New and revised IFRSs effective during the year

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Amendments
resulting from September 2014 Annual Improvements to IFRSs (dnnual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the application of
the consolidation exceptions (dnnual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016)

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Amendments regarding the
application of the consolidation exception (dnnual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments resulting from the
disclosure initiative (4nnual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2016)

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2011) - Amendments reinstating
the equity method as an accounting option for investments in in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in an entity's separate financial statements
(Annual periods beginning on or gfier 1 January 2016)




11

GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2.

(®)

®)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Cont’d)

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) (Cont’d)
New and revised IFRSs and IASs in issue but not yet effective

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Finalised version, incorporating requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment, general hedge accounting and
derecognition (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018)

IERS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Amendments to defer the effective
date to 1 January 2018 (Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

The directors anticipate that the application of these Standards and Interpretations on the above
effective dates in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) including International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“LASB™).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting date. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in compliance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as modified by the exemption from
consolidation in the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 (“IFRS as modified by Mauritius Companies
Act 20017) for companies holding a Category 1 Global Business Licence.

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are set out below.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

3.

©

(d)

(©

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Consolidated financial statements

The Company owns 57.61% of the issued share capital of Godrej Consumer Products Dutch
Cooperatief U.A, a company incorporated in Netherlands and 99.99 % of issued share capital of
Godrej Nigeria Limited, a company incorporated in Nigeria and 100% of issued share capital of
Godrej Africa Holding Limited, a company incorporated in Mauritius.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption provided by the Mauritius Companies Act
2001 allowing a wholly owned or virtually owned parent company holding a Category 1 Global
Business Licence not to present consolidated financial statements which contain financial
information of the Company as an individual company and do not contain consolidated financial
information as the parent of the group.

Group financial statements, are prepared at the level of the holding company, Godrej Consumer
Products Ltd, a company incorporated in India.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Company has control.
The Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity, Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Company. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Company ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in
profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in United States Dollar (‘USD’), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

3.

®

(8

()

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific criteria must also be
met for revenue recognition:

- Interest income — as it accrues unless collectibility is in doubt.
- Dividend income — when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established,

Expense recognition
All expenses are accounted for profit or loss on an accruals basis.
Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or not classified as loans and receivables, held to maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date. Available-for-sale investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction costs. After initial measurement,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses being
recognised directly in equity.

When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded in equity is
recognised in profit or loss. Interest earned or paid on the investments is reported as interest
income or expense. Dividends, if any, earned on investments are recognised in profit or loss as
“Dividend received” when the right of payment is established.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a
revaluation decrease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

3.
(i)

®

(k)

o)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods,

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or
amortisation other than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an
impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial year of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale,

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recogniscd in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. '

Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

e the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

e it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and

e areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to
settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The
reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset, The amount recognised for the reimbursement
shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Prowvisions are not recognised for future operating losses,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(m) Current and deferred income tax

®

()

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in profit or loss because it excludes iters of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years but it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and are accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Stated capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the
Company has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company’s
policies in respect of the main financial instruments are as follows:

® Other payables

Other payables are stated at their nominal values.

e Other receivables

Other receivables are stated at their nominal values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
{0) Financial instruments (cont’d)

® Loans

Loans are stated at their nominal values,

e Equity instruments
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(p) Related party transactions

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Company if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Company or exercise
significant influence over the Company in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Company is subject to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individual or other entities.

4,  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Company s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the most effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:-

Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of
transactions and exchange differences arising thereon are dependent on the functional currency
selected. As described in Note 3(e), the directors have considered those factors described therein
and have determined that the functional currency of the Company is the USD,

Fair valuation of investment in subsidiaries and available-for-sale investments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation technique including the discounted cash flow models. The Company uses its
judgement to select a variety of models and make assumptions that are mainly based on market
condition existing at reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 2016 2015

USD USD

At start and at close - 1

The details of investment are as follows:

Name of Country of Type of Yo Amount
Company incorparation shares Holding 2016 2015
USD USD
Godrej Consumer
Products Dutch Capital
Cooperatief U.A Netherlands  contribution  0,000003% - 1

Godrej Argentina Dutch Cooperatief U.A has merged with Godrej Consumer Products Dutch
Cooperatief U.A. Hence, the available-for-sale investment in 2015 has been added to investment
in 2016.

Fair value hierarchy
Fair value measurements are classified into a fair value hierarchy by reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in measuring fair value. The hierarchy priorities

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value based on their observable or
unocbservable nature. The three levels are as follows:

Level 1- valued using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets,

Level 2- valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted
prices included within level 1.

Level 3- valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on

observable market data.
31 March 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
USsD USD USD UsDh
Available-for-sale investment - . - -
31 March 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD USDh UsDh USsD

Available-for-sale investment - - 1 1




GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

7. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Interest receivable
Prepayments

Amount due from subsidiaries
Advance payment

8. LOAN RECEIVABLE

Loan to Godrej Africa Holdings
At start

Addition

Atend

20

2016 2015
USD USD
37,616 -
670 671
1,000 -
- 10,531
39,286 11,202
2016 2015
USD USD
6,000,000 -
6,000,000 -

The above loan borne a 6 months Libor rate + 1.45% rate per annum, unsecured in nature and

will be repayable on demand.

9. STATED CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid
45,235,006 ordinary shares of USD 1 each

10. SHARE PREMIUM

At start and at close

11. BORROWING

Loan from HSBC
At start

Addition

Atend

2016 2015
USD USD
45,235,006 _ 45,235,006
2016 2015
USD USD
56,338,834 _ 56,338,834
2016 2015
USD USD
6,000,000 -
6,000,000 -

The above loan borne a 6 months Libor rate + 1.2% rate per annum, unsecured in nature and will

be repayable on demand.

GCPI India has submitted a letter of comfort for USD 15,000,000 as requested by the bank.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

12. OTHER PAYABLES 2016 2015
USD USD
Interest payable 33,785 -
Accruals 10,900 10,050
44,685 10,050
13, TAXATION

The taxation of income and capital gains of the Company and of the shareholders is subject to
the fiscal law and practice of the Republic of Mauritius, the countries in which the Company
invests and the jurisdiction in which shareholders are resident or otherwise subject to tax. At
31 March 2016, the Company held investment in Mauritius and Netherlands.

Mauritius

Under the current laws and regulations, the Company is liable to tax in Mauritius at 15% on its
taxable income. It is however entitled to a tax credit equivalent to the higher of the actual
foreign taxes paid or 80% of the Mauritius tax on its foreign source income, thus reducing its
maximum effective tax rate to 3%.

Netherlands

The Company also conducts its investment activities in Netherlands but not as a tax resident of
Mauritius as there is no (“DTAA”) between Netherlands and Mauritius.

Nigeria

The Company also conducts its investment activities in Nigeria but not as a tax resident of
Mauritius as there is no (“DTAA”™) between Nigeria and Mauritius.

No tax liability arises in Mauritius for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015. For
the year under review, the Company had accumulated tax losses of USD 1,894,976
(31 March 2015 - USD 2,847,335).

Tax Reconciliation 2016 2015
USD USD
Profit/(loss) before taxation 253,422 (64,796)
Add disallowed expense 72,279 -
Less exempt income (297,232) -
28,469 (64,796)
Less tax loss brought forward (2,847,362) " (3,507,388)
Tax loss freezed 923,917 724,822
Tax loss-carried foxward (1,894,976) (2,847,362)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

13.

14,

15.

(2)

®)

TAXATION (Cont’d)

Availability of tax loss for use against future taxable profit

2016 2015

USD USD
Year of assessment _
Tax losses carried forward for next § years - (64,796)
Tax losses carried forward for next 4 years (64,796) -
Tax losses carried forward for next 3 years - (918,982)
Tax losses carried forward for next 2 years (918,982) (911,198)
Tax losses carried forward for next 1 year (911,198) (952,386)

(1,894,976} (2,847,362)
DIVIDEND INCOME 2016 2015
USD USD .

Dividend income from Godrej Africa Holding Ltd 297,231 -

The above income has been fully received.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Values of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The Company’s financial assets
and liabilities include available-for-sale investment, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
loan receivable, loan payable and other payables. The carrying amounts of these assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values.

Currency profile

The currency profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are summarised as follows:

Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets Liabilities assets liabilities
2016 2016 2015 2015
Ush USD USD USD
United States Dollars 6,296,296 6,044,685 75,193 10,050

Prepayments amounting to USD 670 (2015: USD 671) have been excluded from financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

15.
©
@

(it)

(i)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk
Currency risk

No foreign currency sensitivity analysis has been provided as the Company's financial assets and
liabilities are dominated in USD, the functional currency.

Credit risk

Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to credit risk consist principally of other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The extent of the Company's exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial assets approximates their carrying values as recorded in the company's
statement of financial position.

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be
unable to pay amounts in full when due. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the
maximum credit exposure,

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2016 2015

UsD USD
Cash and cash equivalents 257,680 64,661
Other receivables 38,616 10,531
Loan receivable 6,000,000 -
6,296,296 75,192

The financial assets are neither past due nor impaired at reporting date,
The excess monies of the Company are banked with reputable banks.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate resetves, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

15, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
{c) Financial risk (Con{’d)

(iii) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The table below illustrates the aged analysis of the Company's financial liabilities.

31 March 2016
Less than Over1
1 year Year Total
Liabilities USD USD - USD
Borrowings 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Other payables 44,685 - 44,685
Total liabilities 6,044,685 - 6,044,685
31 March 2015
Less than Overl
1 year Year - Total
Liability USD USD USD
Other payables 10,050 - 10,050

10,050

Total liability 10,050

(v) Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest bearing financial instrument consist of loan from its local bank (HSBC)
amounting to USD 6,000,000, The rate of interest is 6month Libor rate + 1.45% per annum. Asa
resuli, the Company is not subject to significant amount of risk due to fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates.

(v)  Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to shateholders or issue new shares.

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balanee.. The capital structure of the Company consists of borrowings and equity attributable to
its:aquity-holder, comprising issued capital and retained earnings.
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15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk (Cont’d)

(v) Capital risk management (Cont’d)
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Gearing Ratio 2016 2015
USD USD
Gearing ratio at the year end was:
Debt (i) 6,000,000 -
Less cash and cash equivalents (257,680) -
Net debt 5,742,320 -
Equity (i} 102,454,698 -
Net debt to equity ratio 0.06:1 -

(i)  Debtis defined as loan payable.

(ii) Equity includes all capital and retained earnings of the Company.

16. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company had transactions and balances with the related

entities as follows:
Debit/(creditf) Debit/(credit)
balance at balance at
Name of Nature of Nature of Volume of 31 March 31 March
entities relationships  transactions  iransaction 2016 2015
USD USD UsD
Godrej Africa Loan
Holding Ltd Subsidiary receivable (i) 6,000,000 6,000,000 -
Godrej Africa Interest
Holding Ltd Subsidiary receivable 37,616 37,616 -
Godrej Nigeria
Ltd Subsidiary Investment - 10,520,000 10,520,000
Godrej
Consumer
Products Dutch
Cooperatief U.A  Subsidiary Investment 58,114,835 58,114,835 -
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16. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)
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Debit/(credit) Debit/(credit)
balance at balance at
Name of Nature of Nature of Volume of 31 March 31 March
enfities relationships  transactions  tramsactions 2016 2015
USD USD USD
Godrej Africa
Holding Ltd Subsidiary Investment 33,536,628 33,536,628
Godrej Easy IP
Holding Subsidiary Investment (ii) 20,425 30,955 10,530
Godrej Easy IP Settlement of
Holding Subsidiary expenses 1,000 1,000 -
Godrej Africa Dividend
Holding Ltd Subsidiary income (i) (297,232) (297,232) -
Godrej Africa Loan interest
Holding Ltd Subsidiary income (37,616) (37,616) -

@ The above loan borne a 6 months Libor rate + 1.45% rate per annum, unsecured in nature
and will be repayable on demand.

(i)  In 2015, shares were not yet allotted, only costs were incurred for acquisition.

17. HOLDING AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

18.

The directors regard Godrej Consumer Products Ltd, a company incorporated in India as the
company holding and ultimate holding company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 March 2016, the Company has no material litigation claims outstanding, pending or

threatened against, which could have a material effect on the Company's financial position or
results of operations.
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19.

20.

21.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As per resolution dated 4 November 2015, the company intends to invest in 3 subsidiaries that
are in process of being incorporated and the details are as set below:

¢ 9,999,999 ordinary shares of Nigerian Naira 1.00 in the authorized share capital of Godrej
Hair Care Nigeria Ltd

* 9,999,999 ordinary shares of Nigerian Naira 1.00 in the authorized share capital of Godrej
Weave Nigeria Ltd

e 9,999,999 ordinary shares of Nigerian Naira 1.00 in the authorized share capital of Godrej
Household Insecticide Nigeria Ltd

These events would not require any adjustment to the financial statements at 31 March 2016.

The Company has no material capital commitments as at 31 March 2016.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
There have been no material events after the reporting date, which would require disclosure or

adjustment to the financial statements at 31 March 2016.

REPORTING CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (“USD”).
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have the pleasure to submit their commentary together with the audited financial
statements of Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited, the “Company”, for the year ended
31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding,
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the year are as shown in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income,

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year under review (2014: Nil).
DIRECTORS

The present membership of the Board is set out on page 1.
DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which
present fairly the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and .

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business. '

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements int preparing the financial
statements.

The directors arc responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Morison (Mauritius), heve indicated their willingness to continue in office and a
resolution concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual Meeting of the shareholder.
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FUND | CORPORATE | FIDUCIARY SERVICES
CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY

We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited
has filed with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required of the Company under the
Mavritius Companies Act 2001 in terms of section 166(d) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Ch‘\bk}'w

for CIM CORPORATE SERVICES LTD
Corporate Secretary

Date: 2 LAPR 0

€M CORPORATE SERVICES LTD

33, Edith Covell Sires, Port Louis, 11324, Mouritius

Tel: +230 212 Q800 Fax; +230 212 9833 Email; info@cimglobalbusiness.com
BRN CO%004928

ww.cimglobolbusiress.com



- 7% Morison (Mauritius) *

Public Accountants - An independent member of Morison International

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

This report is made solely to the shareholder of Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited, the
“Company”, as a body in accordance with Section 205 of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s shareholder those matters we
are required to state to the shareholder in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s shareholder as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Company which comprise the statement of financial
position at 31 March 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements
of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and Financial Services Act 2007. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

2™ Floor, Fairfax House, 21 Mgar Gonin Street, Port Louis
Republic of Mauritius

o {230y 210 13787210 5172

&L 230)2105927

BN info@morismuicom

wwwmorismy.con
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Public Accountants An independent member of Morison International

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 6 to 26 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the' Company at 31 March 2015, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and Financial Services Act 2007.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauvritius Companies Act 2001

= we have no relationship with, or any interests in, the Company other than in our capacity as
auditors;
we have obtained ail the information.and explanations we have required; and

in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears
from our examination of those records.

I\\}}r'gs\{n HIM‘\all'f}-'i'ti}:s) Nazeer Bhufaloo, FCCA (Licensed by FRC)

Public Accountants Signing P

Date: '2!; .’-\PR 20\5

Port Louis, Mauritius

P Floor, Fairfax House, 21 Mgr Gonin Strect, Port Louis
Republic of Mauritius

T (230) 210 1378/210.5172

&5 (230) 210 5927

BN jnfo@morigmu.com

www,morismiscdm
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

ASSETS

Non current assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale investment

Current assets
Other recejvables
Cash and cash equivalents

Taotal assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves
Stated capital

Share premium
Preference shares
Fair value reserve
Accumulated losses

Current liability
Other payables

Total equity and liabilities

Approved by the Board of Directors on

i)

24 APR 2015

Notes 2015 2014
USD USD
5 102,135,462 94,915,462
6 1 1
102,135,463 94,915,463
7 11,202 14,974
2 64,661 7,835
75,863 22.809
102,211,326 94,938,272
9 45,235,006 37,385,006
10 56,338,834 56,338,834
11 - 500,000
4,566,076 4,566,076
(3,938,640} (3,873,844)
102,201,276 94,916,072
12 10,050 22,200
102,211,326 94,938,272

Director

and signed on its behalf by

R~

Director

The notes on pages 10 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent:Auditors® report on pages 4 and 5.

i



GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

INCOME
Interest income
Other income

EXPENSES
Administrative expenses
Legal and professional fees
Audit fees

Interest paid

(Loss)profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Note 2015 2014
USD USD

. 192,907

8 3

g 322,910

24,035 22,819

35.261 41,076

3.900 4,200

1.608 ;

64,804 68,005

(64,796) 954,815

13 : ]

(64,796) 254,815

©479%) 254,815

The notes on pages 10 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditors® report on pages 4 and 5.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before taxation
Adjustment for:

Interest income

Decrease/(increase) in other receivables
Decrease in ather payables

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment in subsidiaries
Proceed from loan repayment

Interest received

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

Redemption of preference shares

Proceeds from borrowings

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash at bank

2015 2014
USD USD -
(64,796) 254,815
- (322,907)
3,772 (14,100)
(12,150) (9,178)
(73,174) (91,370)
(7,220,000  (6,993,001)
- 6,250,000
- 1,012,032
(7,220,000 269,031
7,850,000 3,000,000
(500,000)  (3,500,000)
: 10,000
7,350,000 (490,000)
56,826 (312,339)
7.835 320,174
64,661 7,835
64,661 7,835

The notes on pages 10 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ report on pages 4 and 5.

(k
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

L.

COMPANY PROFILE

Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited (the “Company™) is a private company, limited by
shares and incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius on 15 February 2008 under the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001. The Company holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence under Section
72(6) of the Financial Services Act 2007 and is regulated by the Financial Services Commission.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding and its registered office is at
C/o CIM CORPORATE SERVICES LTD, Les Cascades Building, Edith Cavell Street,
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Company has applied all of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and the IFRS
Interpretations Committee of the JASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for
accounting periods beginning on ¢1 April 2014,

New and revised IFRSs and IFRICs applied with no material effeet on financial statements

IERS 10 Consolidated Finencial Statements - Amendments for investment entities
(effective on or after 1 January 2014)

JIAS 27 Separate Pinancial Statements (es amended in 2011) - Amendments for
investment entities (effective on or afler 1 January 2014)

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Amendments relating to the offsetting of

assets and liabilities (gffective on or after 1 January 2014)

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets - Amendments arising from Recoverable Amount

Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (effective on or gfter I January 2014)
S39 Financial Insttuments: Recognition and Measurement - Amendments for

novation’s of derivatives (effective on or after 1 January 2014)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle (scope of the portfolio exception in paragraph 52) {effective
on or after 1 July 2014)

1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures - Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle (management entities) (effective on or after 1 July 2014)
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

2,

®

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs and IFRICs in issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant Standards and

Interpretations were in issue but effective on annual periods beginning an or after the respective
dates as indicated:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Deferral of mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 and
amendments to transition disclosures (effective on or gfter 1 January 2015)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — New requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets and liabilifies (effective on or afiér 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Hedge Accounting and amendments to IFRS 9, [FRS

7, and IAS 39 (2013) (tentatively effective on or after 1 January 2018}

The directors anticipate that the application of these Standards and Interpretations on the above
effective dates in future periods will have no material impact on the financial stafements of the
Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Finencial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) including International Accounting Stendards (IAS) and
interpretations of the Stending Interpretations Committee (SIC) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and labilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting date. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company's accounting policies. At 31 March 2015, there were no areas

involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

3.
(c)

(d)

()

®

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency™). The financial
statements are presented in United States Dollar (‘USD*), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency vsing the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition
Revenues are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific criteria must also be
met for revenue recognition:

- Interest income — as it accrues unless collectibility is in doubt,
- Dividend income — when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Expense recognition

All expenses are accounted for profit or loss on an accruals basis.
Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment.

The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of*

¢ the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and
equity instruments issued by the Company; plus

o any costs directly attributable to the purchase of the subsidiary.

An adjustment to the cost of a business combination contingent on future events is included in
the cost of the combination if the adjustment is probable and can be measured reliably,
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

3.

@

(h)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Consolidated financial statements

The Company holds 99.99% of the issued shere capital of Godrej Argentina Dutch Cooperatief
U.A, 2 company incorporated in Netherlands and 99.99 % of issued share capital of Godrej
Nigeria Limited, a company incorporated in Nigeria and 10% of issued share capital of Godrej
Africa Holding Limited, a company incorporated in Mauritius, The results and financial position
of the Company's subsidiary investments are not consolidated and therefore group financial
statements in accordance with IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements have not been
prepered,

Group financial statements, are prepared at the level of the holding company, Godrej Consumer
Products Ltd, a company incorporated in India.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or not classified as loans and receivables, held to maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date. Available-for-sale investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction costs. After initial measurement,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses being
recognised directly in equity.

When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded in equity is
recognised in profit or loss. Interest earned or paid on the investments is reported as interest
income or expense. Dividends, if any, earned on investments are recognised in profit or loss as
“Dividend received” when the right of payment is established.

Impairment of assets

The company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If eny such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated {or
the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual
asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is
determined.

"The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use.

If tie recovérable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is'reduced fo its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
¥OR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

3.
6

@

()

M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of assets (Cont'd)

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is

recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognised in prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated,

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried af cost less accumulated depreciation or
amortisation other than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an
impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial year of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investmeni of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:

¢ the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

e it is probable that an outflow of resources ernbodying economic benefits will be required to
settie the obligation; and

» . g reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.



15

GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

3.
m

(m)

(m)

©

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Provisions and contingencies (Cont’d)

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to
settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The
reimbursement shall be treated as & separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement
shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations is subject to interpretations
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements, However, the defemred income tax is not accoumted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the

reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Stated capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Other payables

Other payables are recognised at their nominal value.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

3.

®)

@

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include AFS investments,
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other payables. The particular recognition
methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item..

Disclosures about financial instruments to which the Company is a party are provided in note 14.

Related party transactions

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Company if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Company or exercise
significant influence over the Company in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, ot where the Company is subject to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individual or other entities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Company's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the most effect on the amounts
recognised in the financiel statements:-

Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of
transactions and exchange differences arising thereon are dependent on the functional currency
selected. As described in Note 3, the directors have considered those factors described therein
and have determined that the functional currency of the Company is the USD.

Fair valuation of investment in subsidiaries and available-for-sale investments

The fzir value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation technique including the discounted cash flow models. The Company uses its
judgement o select & variety of models and make assumptions that are mainly based on market
condition existing at reporting date.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Fair values of investments have been determined by using the discounted cash flow (DCF)
model, The use of the DCF model requires certain assumptions about model inputs including
_growth rates and discount factors. Review of the fair value of the investments is done on a two
year interval basis.

Following the restructuring of the group, Godrej Kinky Holding Ltd and Godrej Consumer
Investment Holding Ltd (“GCIHL”) have merged following which, GCIHL was the surviving
entity.

As per directors’ resolution dated 23 Janvary 2015, the investment held in GCIHL, was
transferred to Godrej Africa Holdings Ltd (“GAHL”). As consideration for the transfer of
investment, GAHL issued 29,943,001 ordinary shares of USD 1 each at a premium of USD
0.12001562 per share to the Company.

6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 2015 2014

USD USD

At start and at close 1 1

The details of investment are as follows:

Name of Country of Type of % Amount
Company incorporation shares Holding 2015 2014
ush UsDh
Godrej Consumer
Products Dutch Capital
Cooperatief U.A Netherlands  contribution  0.000003% 1 1
7. OTHER RECEIVABLES 2015 2014
uUsD UsSD
Amount due from subsidiaries - 14,359
Prepayments 671 615
Advance payment 10,531 -
11,202 14,974




GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

8.

10.

11,

12.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited
The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

STATED CAPITAL

Issued and filly paid

45,235,006 ordinary shares of USD 1 each (2014: 37,385,006
ordinary shares)

SHARE PREMIUM

At start and at close

PREFERENCE SHARES

At start
Redemption
At close

19

2015 2014
USD UsD
7,531 7,519
37,130 316
64,661 7,835
2015 2014
USD USD
45,235,006 37,383,006
2013 2014
UsSD USD
56,338,834 56,338,834
2015 2014
USD USD
500,000 4,000,000
{500,000) (3,500,000}
- 500,000

In March 2010, the Company issued 4,000,000 cumulative preference shares ("Preference
Shares") which are entitled to a cumulative right of 8% in dividends per annum. The shareholder
has resolved that no dividend be accrued in the year where losses are made. The Constitution of
the Company provides that the Company may redeem its cumulative preference shares at such
terms and conditions determined by the Board. As per directors’ resolution dated 13 February
2015, 500,000 remaining cumulative preference shares were redeemed at a value of USD 1 per

share,

OTHER PAYABLES

Short term advance
Accruals

2015 2014
USD USD
- 10,000
10,050 12,200
10,050 22,200




GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

13. TAXATION

20

The taxation of income and capital gains of the Company and of the shareholders is subject to
the fiscal law and practice of the Republic of Mauritius, the countries in which the Company
invests and the jurisdiction in whichi shareholders are resident or otherwise subject to tax. At
31 March 2015, the Company held investment in Mauritius and Netherlands.

Mauritius

Under the current laws and regulations, the Company is liable to tax in Mauritius at 15% on its
taxable income. It is however entitled to 2 tax credit equivalent to the higher of the actual
foreign taxes paid or 80% of the Mauritius tax on its foreign source income, thus reducing its
maximum effective tax rate to 3%.

Netherlands

The Company also conducts its investment activities in Netherlands but not as a tax resident of
Mauritius as there is no (“DTAA”) between Netherlands and Mauritius,

Nigeria

The Company also conducts its investment activities in Nigeria but not as a tax resident of
Mauritius as there is no (“DTAA”) between Nigeria and Mauritius.

No tax lability arises in Mauritius for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014. For
the year under review, the Company had accumulated tax losses of USD 2,847,335
(31 March 2014 - USD 3,507,388).

Tax Reconciliation 2015 2014

usD USD
Profit before taxation (64,796) 254,815
Less tax loss brought forward (3,507,388) (3,762,203)
Tax loss freezed 724,822 -
Tex loss carried forward (2,847,362) (3,507,388)
Availability of tax loss for use against future taxable profit

2015 2014

UsD USD
Year of assessment
Tax losses carried forward for next 5 years - -
Tax losses carried forward for next 4 years (64,796) -
Tax losses carried forward for next 3 years - (918,982)
Tax losses carried forward for next 2 years (918,982) (911,198)
Tax losses carried forward for next 1 year (911,198) {952,386)
Tax losses useable by end of 31 March (952,386) (724,822)

(2,847,362) (3,507,388)
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14.

(2)

(b)

(©)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Values of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The Company’s financial assets
and liabilities include available~for-sale investment, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and other payables. The carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities approximate their fair
values.

Currency profile

The currency profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are summarised as follows:

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets liabilities
USsD USD USD USD
United States Dollars 64,661 10,050 22,195 22,200

Prepayments amounting to USD 671 (2014: USD 615) have been excluded from financial assets.

No foreign currency sensitivity analysis has been provided as the Company's financial assets and
liabilities are dominated in USD, the functional currency.

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements are classified info a fait value hierarchy by reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in measuring fair value. The hierarchy priorities
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value based on their observable or
unobservable nature. The three levels are as follows:

Level 1- valued using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2- valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted
prices included within level 1.

Level 3- valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on
observable market data.
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14.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont*d)

(¢) Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

(d)

(i

31 March 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD usD UsD UsD
Available-for-sale investment - 1 . 1
Cash and cash equivalents - 64,661 - 64,661
Other payables - - {10,050) (10,050)
- 64,662 {10,050) 54,612
31 March 2014
Level 1 Level 2 " Level 3 Total
USD USD USD USD
Available-for-sale investment - 1 - 1
QOther receivables - - 14,359 14,359
Cash and cash equivalents - 7,835 - 7,835
Other payables - - (22,200) (22,200)
E 7,836 (7,841) (5
Financial risks

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks such as market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, concentration risk and liquidity risk. The Company's
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Market risk

Market rigk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

At year end the Company had no significant concentration of market risk which had not been
adequately provided for.
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14,
@
(i}

(i)

(W)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risks (Cont’d)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractnal obligations and arises principally from cash and cash
equivalents and other receivables.

At year end the Company had no significant concentration of credit risk which had been
adequately provided for.

Carrying amount
2015 2014
UsD UsD
Cash and cash equivalents 64,661 7,835
Other recejvables . 14,359
64,661 22,194

The financial assets ere neither past due nor impaired at reporting date.
The excess monies of the Company are banked with reputable banks.

Corncentration risk

At 31 March 2015, a significant portion of the Company's net assets consisted of investrent in
Mauritius, Nigeria end Netherlands companies and policies have been established to mitigate
any potential loss arising from such concentration.

Liguidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able fo meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or rigking damage to the
Company's reputation.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial
liabilities.
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14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(@ Financial risks (Cont’d)

{iv) Liquidity rvisk (Cont’d)

The table below illustrates the aged analysis of the Company's financial liabilities.
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31 March 2015
L.ess than Over1
1 year Year Total
Liabilities USD - USD UsD
Other payables 10,050 - 10,050
Total liabilities 10,050 - 10,050
31 March 2014
Less than QOverl
1 year Year Total
Liabilities USDh USD USD
Other payables 22,200 - 22,200
Total liabilities 22,200 - 22,200

(v) Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for the shareholder and benefits for

other stakeholders,

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising of issued cepital, share premium, fair value reserve and accumulated

losses.

The Company does not have any third party debt due for the year ended 31 March 2015, Hence,

it does not have any capital risk.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company had transactions and balances with the related

entities as follows:
Relationship Name
Subsidiaries Godrej Nigeria Limited

Godrej Aftica Holding Limited
Sister companies Godrej East Aftica Holdings Limited

Godrej Mauritius Africa Holdings Limited

2015 2014
UsSD USD

Related party balances
Owing (to)/by related parties
Godrej Kinky Holdings Limited - 3,662
Godrej Consumer Investments Holdings Limited - 8,697
Godrej East Africa Holdings Limited - (10,000)
Investment in subsidiaries
Godrej Kinky Holdings Limited 33,536,627
Godrej Nigeria Limited 10,520,000 10,520,000
Godrej Argentina Dutch Caoperatief U.A 58,078,834 50,858,834
Godrej Consumer Investments Holdings Limited - 1
Godrej Africa Holding Limited 33,536,628 -
Related party transaction
Interest paid to sister company
Godrej Mauritius Africa Holdings Limited 1,608 -
Repayment of loan
Godrej Kinky Holdings Limited 5,662 -
Godrej Consumer Investments Holdings Limited 8,697 -
Godrej East Africa Holdings Limited (10,000) -
Mavement in investment
Godrej Kinky Holdings Limited (33,536.627) -
Godrej Argentina Dutch Cooperatief U.A 722,000 -
Godrej Africa Holding Limited 33,536,628 -

Godrej Consumer Investments Holdings Limited

(1
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20,

HOLDING AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors regard Godrej Consumer Products Lid, a company incorporated in India as the
company holding and uitimate holding company,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2015 the Company has no material litigation claims outstanding, pending or
threatened against, which could have a material effect on the Company's financial position or
results of operations.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no material capital commitments as at 31 March 2015.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There have been no material events after the reporting date, which would require disclosure or
adjustment to the financial statements as at 31 March 2013,

REPORTING CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (USD).
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~ Certified to be True

For Gpdrej Consumer Products Ltd.

V. Srifivasan

Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Godrej Consumer Products
Mauritins Limited

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2014
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in submitting their anmual report together with the audited financial _

statements of Godrej Consumer Products Mauritius Limited, the “Company”, for the year ended

31 March 2014, 77

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Compeny is that of investment holding.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the year are as shown in the' statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. .

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year under review (2013: Nil).
DIRECTORS
The present membership of the Board is set out on page 1.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which
present fairly the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; -
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

--—g---gtate-whether-International-Finaneial-Reporting: --Standatds-have--i;een-~foﬂcwed,—subjectto-any-------

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requircments in preparing the financial
statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy &t any time the financial position of the Compeny and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. They are also xesponsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company-and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Morison (Mauritius), have indicated their willingness to continye in office and a
resolution concerning their re-appointment will be propesed at the Annual Meeting of the shareholder.




GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY
- 'We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar of

Compames 4l such rétiins a5’ are Tequired of i Comipany. undertheanuus Compames Act?DO"! AN

-in-terms of Section 166(d) for the year ended 31 - March 2014: - it A N

for Intenytldnal Managt (Maaritius) Ltd
Corporate Secrelary

‘Date: 2 1 APR 2%




4&» Morison (Mauritius) ¢
' Public Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

Mauritius Limited, the.

“Compeny” as a'body'm accordance with S'emon 205 of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 Ow ~ =~

Mtwmkhasbemmdmkmmmﬂwemghtmmme&mpm’uhmhddwmmmW
are required to state to the shareholder in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company

andiheCompanysshardmldaasabody ﬁnomaudﬂwoﬂc,forﬂmrepoﬂ,orfortheopmonswe

Repmton_thelﬁnandal&taﬁemmu

We have audited the financial statements of the Company which comprise the statement of financial
position at 31 March 2014, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
sﬁtmeﬂofchmgesmequnyandmmofcashﬂwsformeyemﬁmendeimdammmof
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. .

D:reetors’Respmlbiﬁtyﬂ:rﬂthanqiﬂSMments
mmmm@mmem&wpwpmmmdmmmdmmﬁnmmﬂmm

accordance with. Intérnational Financial Reporting Standards and in conpliance-with the: req'"mm_,;";j;;;,;;;;;;j;;,;

“of the Mauritius Conipanies Act 2001 4iid Finaiicil Seivi i
demgnmg,implemmtmgmdmmmmﬂcmdmlevmwﬁepmpmmﬁu
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or

error; selecting and applying appropriate accomnting policies; and making accounting estimates that
‘axve reasonable in the circumstances.

Anditors’ Responsibility

~Our responsibility -is-to-express—an-opinionm un these firkmicial staterieity based on onr audit, " We
conducted our audit in accordance with Infernational Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are fiee from material misstatement.

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the anditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair preseniation of the financisl statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also inchudes evaluating the appropriateness of
momnngwhmumdmdﬁemamnablmofmmgmmadeby&emrecmmuwdl
as the overell presentation of the financial statements,

Webehevethmﬂ:eandnmdmcewehaveobtamedm sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our andit opinion.
"2 Flgor, maomnugrcomsm - Port Louis - Republic of Mauritius
Tek: (230) 212 9487 /210 1378 / 210 5172 - Fax: (230) 210 5927
Emafl Address: nazbhuealoo@mmnitd net
Email Address: poornim besharry@mmuitd net
An Independent Member of Morison International,
2 Global Association of Independent Professional Firms




”y- Morison (Mauritius) ’

Public Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT :
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 6 to 26 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company at 31 March 2014, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the
MaunnusCommAthOOI andanmalServicesAotmO?

Repm llll OtherLegal MR .-..' :-'-Z.' .-~.:.'.' M enﬁ e i o

Manritius Companies Act 2001

. wehavenorelaﬁonship'wiﬂa, oranyinterestsin,ﬂ:eCompanyotherthminoureapacityas
auditors;
° wehaveobtamedallthemfonnatonandexplanaﬂonswehavereqmred,and

» mmoﬁﬁmmammmhmmmwmwasﬁrasnw.
from our examination of those recerds.

1)

Morison (Mauritiug) - h FCCA (Licensed by FRC)
Public Accountamis Partner _

Date: 11 APR 1%

7 Fioor, Fairfax House, 21 Mar Gonin Street - Port Louis - Republic of Mauritius
Tel.(230)2129487!2101378!2105112-1&:‘(230)2105927

An Independent Member of Morison Intematmnal,
a Global Association of Independent Professional Fixms




GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

&

Direstor

The notes on pages 10 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Audifors’ report on pages 4 and 5.

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
Noiea 2014 2013

e e - e e e aerea empm USD USD
ASSETS
Non current assets
Investment in subsidiaries 5 94,915,462 83,356,385
Avaﬂable-for-sale.invesunmts Y T | ;
Loan to related party 7 - 6 939 125

~ 94,915,463 90,295,511
Current assets
Other receivables 8 14,974 874
Cash and cash equivalents 9 .. 7,835 320,174 ..
' ' 22,809 321,048
Total assets 94,938,272 90,616,559
EQUITY AND.melnEs. AR R L S S EEE 1 I R
Capital and reserves
Stated capital 10 37,385,006 34,385,006
Share premium 11 56,338,334 56,338,834
Preference shares 12 500,000 4 000,000
Fair value reserve 4,566,076
Accumulated-losses (3;873;845) —— {4,128, 659)—-‘--————-»—-‘---

94 916,072 90,595,181

Current liabilities
Other payables 13 22,200 21,378
Total equity and liabilities 94,938,272 90,616,559
Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 APR 104 and signed on its behalf by

e




GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014 -

I 3 7 WA 7 + W ——

INCOME _
Interest income 322,907 671,000
Other income . 3 1
L S BT Rt e PO Rt SRR T 7.1 322,910 .. 671,001 = Ry

EXPENSES

Administrative expenses _ 22,819 39,758

Legal and professional fess 41,076 21,725

Audit fees 4200 4,000
63,095 65,483

Profit before taxation T 254815 605,518

Taxation 14 - ; -

Profit for the year. -~ : T T ai—"r T S

Qther compreherisive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - 254,815 605,518 -

The notes on pages 10 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditors’ report on pages 4 and 5.
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

—

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 254,815 605,518
Adjustment for:
Interest receivables (322,907) (671,000)
Amalgamation charges. - .; ... . Py St PR (1 N | v ) IRR R
Increase in other receivables (14,100) (874)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables (9,178) 12,578
Net cash used in operating activities - (91,370) (93,563)
Cash flows from investing activities 4
Investment in subsidiaties - (6,993,001) (80,000)
Proceed from loan repeyment 6,250,000 -
Interest received _ 1,012,032 - 454,000
- Net cash generated from investing activities 269,031 - 414,000
" .Cash flows from financing activities. -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 3,000,000 -
Redemption of preference shares (3,500,000)
Loan repayment - (1,500)
Proceeds from borrowings 10,000 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (490,000} - - - (1,500)
....Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash eguivalents (312,339) 318,937
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year . 320,174 1,237
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 7,835 320,174
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash at bank 7,835 320,174

The notes on pages 10 to 26 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ report on pages 4 and 5.
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GODRE]J CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

s

[ — (

n....‘.._.._.__._....._--.---m..—assetsuand—liabi-liﬁes-{qﬂ'ecﬁvevon—or"aﬁer-—l—afanymyi’@ﬂ-and"mterbn'periadv

“Company™) is a private company,
shares and incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius on 15 February 2008 under the Meauritius
Companies Act 2001, The Company holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence under Section
72(6) of the Financial Services Act 2007 and is regulated by the Financial Services Commission,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS o

In the current year, the Company has applied-all of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and the IFRS
Interpretations Committee of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for

......accoutting periods beginning on 01 April 2013. - e

New and revised IFRSs and IFRICs applied with no material effect on financial statements

Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cyele ¢
application, borrowing costs) (effective on or after 1 January 2013) " "

IERS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards -
IFRS 7 Financiallnsmnnems:Disclosmes-AmmdmenBrelatedmtheoﬁ'seuingof

within those periods)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments to transitional guidance
(effective on or afier I January 2013)

IFRS 1] Joint Arrangements - Amendments to transitional guidance (effective on or
gfter 1 January 2013)

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Amendments to transitional guidence
(effective on or after 1 January 2013)

LE,R__SQ_ Fair Value Measurement - Original issue (effective on ar after 1 January 2013)

IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments resolting from Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle (comparative information) {effective on or
afier 1 January 2013) '

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Amendments resulting from Annual

Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle {tax effect of equity distributions) (effective on
or gfter 1 January 2013) -
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GODREJ CONSUMER PRODUCTS MAURITIUS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

3. APPLICATION —~OF NEW AND - REVISED - IN'I’ERNA
"REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d) - T SR Sy S

New and revised IFRSs and IFRICs in issue but not yet effective (Cont*d)

At the date of airthorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant Standards and
Interpretations were in issue but eﬂ'ec‘hve on annual penods begmmng on or aflm' the raspectwe
dates as indicated:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Amendments resulting from Annoal Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle (accounting for contingent consideration) (effective on or

after 1 July 2014) '

IFRS3 Business Combinations - Amendments resulting from Annnal Improvements’

2011-2013 Cyele (scope exception for joint ventures) (effective on or gfter 1’

July2014) . ‘

IFRS 9 Fmanualh:sttuments Deferralofmandatoryemcuvedateofmksgand
amendments to transition disclosured (eﬁ'ecuve onor aﬁer 1 meary 2015)

IFRS 10 7 Consdhidated ‘Fifianeial  SHSHens < AR
(effective on or gfter 1 January 2014) ‘

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Amendments for investment entities
(effective on or after 1 January 2014)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle (scope of the portfolio exception in paragraph 52) (effective
on or gfter 1 July 2014)

woerrseeneJAS. 24 Related Party Disclosures.- Amendments resulting from Annual [mprovements. _......c..i....
2010-2012 Cycle (management entities) (effective on or afier 1 July 2014)

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements(as amended in 2011) - Amendments for
investment entities (effective on or gfter 1 January 2014)

IAS 32 Financidl Instruments: Presentation - Amendments relating to the offsetting of

IAS 36

y “for " nvestment entities T

assets and liabiliiies (effective on or after 1 January 2014)
Impairment of Assets - Amendmenis arising from Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (effective on or gfter 1 January 2014)

Financial Instruments: Recognition and .Measurement - Amendments for
novation’s of derivatives (effective on or after 1 January 2014)

z

The directors anticipate that the application of these Standards and Interpretations on the above
effective dates in future periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of the

Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —~—— ~~~ " =" =]

(=) “Statement of eomphanee

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with Intemnational
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

(b} Basisof preparation ... ... . T T T T e T L L
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial stahementsmconform:tymmlFRSreqmresﬂmuseofmm
critical accouming estimates. It also requ:ms management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. At 31 March 2014, there were no areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or.areas where assumptions and estimates.
are significant to the financial statements. '

(¢) Foreign currency translation

- Punctional and presentation currency T T A

Iterns included in the financial statementsaremeasmedusmgﬂ:emmencyofﬂlepnmaty
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency™). The financial
statements are presented in United States Dollar ("USD’), which is the Company’s functional

and presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

Foreign ¢hirency transactions are translated i the fictionl cirrency using the exchungeyates ™
prevailing at the dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions mdﬁmnthetranslahonatyearmdexchangeratesofmonetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Investmentin subsidiaries

Subsidiaties are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company
controls another entity.

Investments in subsidiaries are shown at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13 — Fair Value
Measurement. Gains and losses arising from chenges in the fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve with the exception
ofunpaumentlosses interest calculated using the effective interest method and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recognised in profit or loss.

Where the investments in subsidiaries are disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumplative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment revalvation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

3. " SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES 8 Contly -

(© Consolidated fnsncisl statements

The Company holds 100% of the issued share capital of Godrej Kinky Holdings I.td, 2 company
incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius, 99.99% of the issued share capital of Godrej

Argentine Dutch Cooperatief U.A, a company - mcorporatedmNetherlandsand9999%of L

issued share capital of Godrej Nigeria Limited; a:company incotporated in Nigeiia. The results
and financial position of the Company's subsidiary investments are mot consolidated and
therefore group financial statements in accordance with IFRS 10 Consofidated Financial
Statements have not been prepared. '

Group financial statements, are prepared at the level of the hold:ng company, Godmj Consmner
Productsl.td,acompanymcozpomadmlndm. L

(f) - Available-for-sale ("AFS") investment
The Company has investments in unlisted shares that are not traded in an active market which

- ara-classified-as -AFS-financial -assetsand stated “at-costas their- fair valve cannot be reliably

‘measured as there is mo active market and an absence of track records for such similar
investments,

Dividends on AFS investment are recognised in profit or loss when the Company’ right to
receive the dividends is established.

(g) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construetlon or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial year of time to get yeady for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substentially ready for their intended use ot sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred,
(h) Impairment of assets

At each reporiing date, the Compeny reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to detexmine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered impairment. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to deterrnine the extent of the
impairment (if any). An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of an asset's net selling
price and its value in use. Impairments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

® Cash and cash eqmva!ents .

Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of .
change in value. °

G Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required fo settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made, At the time of the effective payment, the provision is deducted from the
corresponding expenses. Allknownnsksatreporhngdateammewedmdemlandpmwsmn_
is made where necessary.

_ (k) 3 __Current and deferred ?ngome fax

The current income tax chatgem calculatedonthsbasmofthetaxlawsenacted orsubstanuvely
enacted at the reporting date. Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with réspect to situations in which applicable tax regulations is subject to interpretations
and&stabhshmprov:smns where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in fall, using the lability method, on all temporary differences

---gristng-between-the-tax-bases-of-assets-and-liabilities-and-their-carrying-amounts-in-the-financial —-— ———
statements. However, the deferred income tex is not accounted for if it arises from initial :
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
reporting date and are expecied to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or
the deferred income tax liability is settled,

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

() Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective inferest rate method.
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

{m) Expénse recognition
Expenses are accounted for in profit or loss on an accrual basis.
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3..
(ﬁ)

(0)

®

(@

SOMMARY. OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont*a)

"Related tranaa SR T s —

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Other payables o

Othe.r payables are reoogmsed at thmr nommal value

Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include AFS investments,
loan to related parties, cash and cash equivalenw, ‘borrowings and other payables. The particular

recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with
each item. -

_ Disclosum abaut financial instruments to which the Company is a party are provided in note 15.

For the purpose of these financial statements, paruesareconmderedtoi:erelatedtothe
Company if they have the ability, dlrectly or indirectly, to control the Company or exercise
significant influence over the Company in making financial and operating decisions, or vice

versa, or where the Company is subject to common control or common significant influénice.

Related parties may be individual or other entities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES (;IF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Compary's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the most effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:-

Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of
Wommdmhmged:fﬁmmesmsmgﬂ:mmdependeﬁmtheﬁmﬁonﬂcmy

selected. As described in Note 3(c), the directors have considered those factors described therein -

and have determined that the functional currency of the Company is the USD.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

4. -CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ~ |

 UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d) - -
Going concern
The Company’s management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as &
going concern and is satxsﬁedthattheCompanyhasﬂ:eresoumesto conhnuembusmessfor
foreseeable future.

Furtbermore, the management is not aware ofanymatemlmcertmnues that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, Therefore, the financial
statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Fair valuation of irvestment in subsidiaries

Thefalrvalueofﬁnmc:almsmmentstbaxarenotttadedmanacuvemarketlsdetermmedby
using valuation technique inchiding the discounted cash flow models, The Company uses its

judgement to select a variety of models and make assumptions that are mamly based on market

" condition existing at reporting date..... L pp— Ly S 7
5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 2014 2013
UsD UsD
At start 83,356,385 103,838,835
Additions during the year 6,993,001 80,000
—~Fairvaluation e e B 5 66, 06— :
Cancellation on amalgamation - (26,516,374)
Transfer on amalgamation - 5,953,924

At close 94,915.462 §3,356,385
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Assets measured at fair value
Level 1

31 March 2014
" .Level 2 Level 3

UsD

UsDh . USD

Assets measured at fair value _
Level 1

- 94915462

31 March 2013
Level 2 Level 3

UsD

Investment in subsidiaries R T

UsSD - - USD

- 83,356,385

During the reporting date ended 31 March 2014, there were no transfers between the different

levels.

77 Level 3 reconciliation

The following table shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial
instruments categorised within Level 3 between the beginning and the end of the reporting date.

2014 2013

~USD USD

Additions

Fair value gain

Cancellation on amalgamation
Transfer on amalgamation
Atclose

6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

At start _
Reclassification on amalgamation
Atclose

83,356,385........103,838,835
6,993,001 80,000
4,566,076 -

- (26,516,374)

- 5,953,924

94,915,462 83,356,385

2013 2012

USD UsD
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The detm!s of mvesrmenr.s' are as jbllaws
Name of Country of Type of % - Amount

Company incorporation shares Holding 2014 2013

Godrej Consumer
Products Dutch Capital

Coopg__raﬁef UA Netherlands  contribution 0.000003% . 1 1

7. LOANTO RELATED PARTIES 014 L . 2018

UsD ‘USD

At stat _ 6939,125 - 6,762,125
Interest on loan - 322,907 671,000

” -Repaymentofloanandmtemst e Y A0y,

Atclose - . 6,939,125

The loan to related parties were vnsecured, bearing interest rate from 10.50% to 10.75% per
ennum and have been repaid dunng the year. The directors consider these transections to be
related parties transactions since Godrej Argentina Dutch Cooperatief U.A and . Godrej
Netherlands Argentina BV are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.

8. OTHER RECEIVABLES 2014 2013

UsD Usb

Amount due from subsidiary 14,359 2
Prepayments — - 615 872

14,974 874

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2014 2013

UsD USD

HSBC Bank (Mauritius) Limited 7.519 1,659
The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 316 318,515

7,835 320,174
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e

37,385,006 ordinary shares of USD 1 each (2013; 34,385,006
ordinary shares)

SHARE PREMIUM

At start
Additions during the year
Proceeds from Bonus issue

Net off on amalgamation
At close

COSDTIILT

37,385,006

2014

34,385,006

2013

USD
56,338,834

UsD

55,884,990
~54,749,998

(34,384,993)

(19.911,161)

56,333.834

56,338,834

At start
Addition
Redemption

At close

2014

USD
4,000,000

(3,500,000)

USD

4,000,000

500,000

4,000,000

In March 2010, the Company issued 4,000,000 cumulstive preference shares ("Preference
Shares™) which are entitled to a cumulative right of 8% in dividends per annum. The shareholder
has resolved that no dividend be acerued in the year where losses are made. The Constitution of
the Company provides that the Company may redeem its cumulative preference shares at such

13,

terms and conditions determined by the Board.
OTHER PAYABLES

Short tenn'advance
Accruals

2014

2013

10,000
12,200

UsSD -

21,378

22,200

21,378
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ThetaxanonofmcomeandcapltalgmnsoftheCoanpmyandofthesha:eholdmmsub;eotto
the fiscal law and practice of the Republic of Mauritius, the countries in which the Company
invests and the jurisdiction in which shareholders are resident or otherwise subject to tax. At
31 March 2014, the Company held investment in Mauritius and Netherlands.

Under the current laws and regulations, the-Company is lisble to tax in Mauritivs at 15% on its
taxable income. It is however entitled to a tax credit equivalent to the higher of the actual
foreign taxes paid or 80% of the Manritius tax on its foreign source income, thus reducing its

maximum effective tax rate to 3%.
Netherlands

The Company also conducts its investment activities in Nétherlands but not a5 4 tax resident of
Mauritius as there is no (“DTAA"™) between Netherlands and Mauritius.

The Company also conducts its investment activities in Nigeria but not as a tax resident of
Mauwritius as there is no (“DTAA”) between Nigeria and Mauritius.

No tax lability arisés in Mairitius for the yéais ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, For
the year under review, the Company had accumulated tax losses of USD 2,782,566

<e-(31-March-2013--USD.3,762,203).

Availability of tax loss for use against future taxable profit

2013 2012
USD USD
Year of assessment
Taxable profit set off against tax loss brought forward
Tax losses carried forward for next 5 years - -
Tax losses carried forward for next 4 years - (918,982)
Tax losses carried forward for next 3 years (918,982) (911,198)
Tax losses carried forward for next 2 years (911,198) (952.386)
Tax losses carried forward for next 1 year __ (952,386)

e —gmmm
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()

®

(0

)

Values of financial mstmments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The Company’s financial assets

and liabilities include investment in subsidiarics, available-for-sale investments, cash and.cash ... ...
equivalents, loans receivables, borrowings and other payables. The carrying amounts of these'

assets and liabilities approximate their fair values. The loan bears interest at LIBOR rate and
Margin.

Currency profile
The currency profile of the Comipany's financial assets.and Iiabiliﬁes':iis summarised as follows:

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Financial Finanecial Financial =~ Financial
e stets  liabilities =~ assets Habilities .
United States Dollars 22,195 22,200 320,177 21,378

Prepayments amountmg 10 USD 615 (2013 USD 872) have been excluded from financial assets.

No foreign currency senm‘hmly analysxs has bem prowded as the Company’s ﬁnancml assets and

Financial risks

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks such as market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, concentration risk and liquidity risk. The Company's
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Market risk

Market risk xsmenskthatchangesmmmketpnce,suchasfmgnmhangerﬁtesandmterest
rates will affect the Campany's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within

acceptable parameters, while optimising the retura.

At year end the Company had no significant concentration of market risk which had not been
adequately provided for,
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At 31 March 2014, a significant portion of the Company's net assets consisted of investment in
Mauritius, Nigeria and Netherlands companies and policies have been established to mitigate
any potential loss arising from such concentration.

15, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) ~.~ ~.~.7 =~ ~
(¢) Financial risks (Cont'’d)
(i} Interest rate risk
The. Company’s. interest_rate. risk arises from-long:term borrowings. The. interests.on the ...
borrowings are variable based on USD LIBOR + Msrgii which expose the Conipany 1o cagh ™~
flow interest rate risk. During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, -the
Company’s borrowings at fixed and variable rate were in USD as follows:
- Interest rate profile Carrying amount
e 2014 . 2013
Fixed rate instruments - .
Financial assets - '6,250,_000
 FinanoT Mahililigg "~ - o
(i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial’
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and -arises principaily from the Company’s
receivables from investment securities.
At year end the Company had no sigrificant concentration of credit risk which had been
adequately provided for.
Carrying amount
2014 2013
USDh UsD
Cash and cash equivalents 7.835 320,174
Other receivables 14,359 2
22,194 320,176
The financial assets are neither past due nor impaired at reporting date.
The excess monies of the Company are banked with reputable banks.
(iv) Concentration risk
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15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Coait'd) _

(¢) ‘Financial risks (Cont’d)

(v) Capital management

- The. Company manages its.capital to.ensure that it will be able.to continue 2s 4 going concern .. . .1 .

while maximising the feturt fo irives

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity sttributable to sharcholders. The
Company is not subject to any extemally imposed capital requirements.

(i) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk s the risk-thit the company will fof bé able to meet jts financial obligations as
they fall due. The company maintaing sufficient cash and manages liquidity risk through the

ahility to close out market position,

" The maturity profile of t'he fmancial Tiabilities are. smnmarised as follows: .

31 March 2014
Less than Overl .
1year Year Total
Liabilities .USD.. .USD . . USh
Other payables 22200 - 22200
Total lichilities 22,200 - 22,200
31 March 2013
Less than Overl
1 vear Year Total
Liabilities USD USD Usb
Other payables 21,378 - 21,378
Total linbilities 21,378 - 21.378
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16, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -

Far ﬁxeyearmdediil March 2014 the Companyhadtansacuons andbalancesvnththerela:edm

entity as follows:
Dabitl(credit) Debit /(credit)
N ... balancest  balamceat.
Name of g ~‘Nature of Volumeofi’oiMarchSIMarch
entity - Relationship transactions transactions 2014 2013
UsSD USD UsD
Godrej Kinky
-Holdings Amount s S VI
Limited Subsidiary  receivable 5,660 5662 2 .
Godrej
. i

. Dl ugl elntu:a_

7 "Coorperatief ™ gy ; - B
UA Subsidiary repayment 350,000 - 350,000
Godrej .

Netherlands
Agentina  Fellow  Loan o
BV subsidiary Tepayment 5,900,000 - 5,900,000

e Godref
Argentina
Dutch
Coorperatief Interest .

UA Subsidiary paid 104,209 - 104,209
Godrej

Netherlands

Argentina Fellow Interest on

BV subsidiary loan 584,917 - 584,917
Godrej

Consumer

Investments

Holdings Sister Amount

Limited Company receivable 8,697 8,697 -
Godrej East

Affica

Holdings Sister Short term

Limited Company ' advance 10,000 (10,000) -
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| 16 RELATEB PARTY TRANSAC‘I‘IONS (Cont’d)

L. The loa.n recew%le ﬁ'om GodreJ Argentma Dutch Coopetatlef UA is unsecured, bears

interest at 10,50% per annum and has been repaid during the year.

2. The Joan receivable from Godrej Netherlands Argentina BV as msecured, bears interest at

.10.75%per.annum and has been repaid during the year. .-

3 TheshorttermadvancefromﬁodreanstAﬁ'xcaHoldmgs Lumwdlsunsecummm

free and repayable on demand,

17. HOLDING AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors regard Godrej Consume:Produmud,aoompanymcorporatedmhdiaasthe
group’s holding mdulnmateholdmgcompany :

18, CONTINGENT LIABDLES I

At 31 March 2014 the Company has no material litigation claims outstanding, pending or
threatened against, which could have a material effect on the Compeny's financial position or
results of operations.

" 19. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no material capital commitments as at 31 March 2014,

20. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
There have been no material events efter the reporting date, which would require disclosure or
adjustment to the financial statements as at 31 March 2014.

21. REPORTING CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (USD).




